
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 
Grant House 
Mayor Pro Tempore 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 

Bendy White 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Das Williams 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Dale Francisco 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov
 

MARCH 16, 2010 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 12:00 Noon - Special Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 1:00 p.m. - Special Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public 

Meeting Room, 630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:00 NOON IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBER (120.03) 

Subject: Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance Revisions 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee: 
A. Review allowable areas for dispensaries with protection for the highest priority 

substance abuse recovery facilities; and  
B. Discuss the concept of Medical Marijuana collectives and cooperatives, and 

consider possible Municipal Code regulations to ensure compliance with the 
State Health and Safety Code regarding the distribution of Medical Marijuana to 
"qualified patients" by "primary care givers." 

 
 
SPECIAL FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 1:00 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD 
PUBLIC MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

Subject:  Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee: 
A. Recommend that the City Council authorize amending a loan agreement with 

Transition House to increase the loan amount by $170,000 in federal Home 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds for construction of new units on 
the property and amending certain provisions in the loan agreement related to 
project financing; 

B. Recommend that the Agency Board approve a loan of $39,391 for construction of 
new units on the property as a contingency in the event that Fiscal Year 
2010/2011 HOME funds are not awarded in time; 

C. Recommend that the Agency Board approve a loan of $150,000 to Mom's LP in 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside funds for rehabilitation of existing 
units on the property; and 

D. Recommend that the above actions be taken subject to the condition that Mom's 
LP secure low income housing tax credits for the project. 

3/16/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 



 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 

AFTERNOON SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the special meeting of February 25, 2010, and the regular meeting of March 2, 
2010. 
  

2. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Parking Lots 4 And 5 Circulation 
And Accessibility Improvements Project  (550.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract to Lash Construction (Lash) in their low bid amount of 

$192,645 for construction of the Parking Lots 4 and 5 Circulation and 
Accessibility Improvements Project (Project), Bid No. 3592; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $19,265 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to negotiate and execute a a City 
Professional Services Agreement with Watry Design (Watry) in the 
amount of $7,950 for construction support services and expenditures of up 
to $1,000 for extra services of Watry that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to negotiate and execute a City 
Professional Services Agreement with Fugro West (Fugro) in the amount 
of $7,500 for material testing services during construction. 

3/16/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT'D) 
 
3. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And 

Reinvestment Act Road Overlay Project  (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Nye & Nelson in the amount of $1,045,276 for 

construction of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (Recovery 
Act) Road Overlay Project (Project), Bid No. 3583; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $120,878 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Flowers and Associates (Flowers) in the amount of 
$68,000 for construction support services, and approve expenditures of up 
to $6,800 for extra services of Flowers that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Fugro West, Inc. (Fugro), in the amount of $18,853 
for construction testing services, and approve expenditures of up to 
$1,885 for extra services of Fugro that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 

 
 
4. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease With Chuck's Waterfront 

Grill  (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a lease with Richones, Inc., doing 
business as Chuck's Waterfront Grill, and introduce and subsequently adopt, by 
reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 
Approving a Lease with Richones, Inc., Doing Business as Chuck's Waterfront 
Grill, Located at 113 Harbor Way, Effective April 22, 2010. 
  

5. Subject:  Resolution To Record A Notice Terminating An Agreement Dated 
February 7, 1952, And Rescinding Title Covenants At 721-791 Chapala 
Street  (640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Record a Notice Terminating an 
Agreement Dated February 7, 1952, and Rescinding Title Covenants at 721-791 
Chapala Street. 
  

3/16/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 



 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT'D) 
 
6. Subject:  Five-Year Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Chamber Of 

Commerce  (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with the 
Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce for the 400 square-foot Visitor Center site 
at One Garden Street. 
  

NOTICES 

7. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 11, 2010, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

8. Cancellation of the regular Redevelopment Agency meeting of March 16, 2010. 

9. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, March 22, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. to 
the property located at 803 N. Milpas Street, which is the subject of an appeal 
hearing set for March 23, 2010, at 2:00 p.m. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

10. Subject:  Annual Report - Access Advisory Committee  (640.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an annual report from the Americans 
with Disabilities Act Coordinator on the activities and achievements of the Access 
Advisory Committee. 
  

3/16/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 



 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT'D) 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Establishing Procedures For 
Appointment And Service Of Youth Member To Parks And Recreation 
Commission  (570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only,  An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Section 2.08.020 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code and Establishing 
Procedures for the Appointment and Service of a Youth Member to the Parks 
and Recreation Commission. 
  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And 
Reinvestment Act Road Maintenance Project  (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Reject the bid protest filed by Valley Slurry Seal and award a contract to 

Bond Blacktop, Inc. (Bond), in the amount of $1,150,148 for construction 
of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (Recovery Act) Road 
Maintenance Project (Project), Bid No. 3586; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $88,100 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;   

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Flowers and Associates (Flowers), in the amount of 
$114,416 for construction support services, and approve expenditures of 
up to $11,440 for extra services of Flowers that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Fugro West, Inc. (Fugro), in the amount of $44,550 
for construction testing services, and approve expenditures of up to 
$4,450 for extra services of Fugro that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 

 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

To Monday, March 22, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. at 803 N. Milpas Street.  (See Item No. 9) 

3/16/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: March 16, 2010 Bendy White, Chair 
TIME:  12:00 p.m. Grant House 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Frank Hotchkiss 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nina Johnson                                                 Stephen P. Wiley 
Assistant to the City Administrator                                City Attorney 
                                                
 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
Subject:  Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance Revisions 
 
Recommendation: That the Ordinance Committee: 
 
A. Review allowable areas for dispensaries with protection for the highest 

priority substance abuse recovery facilities; and  
B. Discuss the concept of Medical Marijuana collectives and cooperatives, 

and consider possible Municipal Code regulations to ensure compliance 
with the State Health and Safety Code regarding the distribution of 
Medical Marijuana to “qualified patients” by “primary care givers.” 

 
 

 



 

File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance Revisions 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Ordinance Committee: 
 
A. Review allowable areas for dispensaries with protection for the highest priority 

substance abuse recovery facilities; and  
B. Discuss the concept of Medical Marijuana collectives and cooperatives, and 

consider possible Municipal Code regulations to ensure compliance with the 
State Health and Safety Code regarding the distribution of Medical Marijuana to 
“qualified patients” by “primary care givers.” 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the February 23, 2010, City Council meeting, the City Council directed the Ordinance 
Committee to consider all of the following:  

1. possible revisions to the latest draft version of the Ordinance regulating Medical 
Marijuana Dispensaries in order to reduce the maximum number of dispensaries 
within the City to five (5),  

2. providing that major alcohol and drug rehabilitation facilities would be protected 
uses and adjusting the allowed areas for dispensaries appropriately,  

3. allowing dispensaries in the Cottage Hospital area, and  
4. further defining the operational parameters of storefront collective/cooperatives in 

order to ensure compliance with Proposition 215 and SB 420.  
 
The Council asked that the proposed ordinance be  returned to Council within 60 days.  
There also seemed to be consensus on the Council to eliminate the Mesa and the area 
around the Salvation Army Hospitality House on the 500 block of Chapala Street as 
allowed areas for dispensaries. 
 
Allowable Areas for Dispensaries with Protection for Recovery Facilities 
 
Staff requested input from the Council on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse (CADA) for 
locations of recovery facilities.  CADA provided a list of 41 known recovery facilities, 
including treatment centers, detoxification centers, support centers, sober living houses, 
and related uses, and indicated the 17 of highest priority for protection: 



Ordinance Committee Report 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance Revisions 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 Alano Club 
 Bethel House 
 Casa Esperanza 
 Casa Serena 
 Cottage Residential Center 
 Daniel Bryant Youth & Family Treatment Center 
 Graduate House (Casa Serena) 
 Hotel de Riviera 
 Oliver House (Casa Serena) 
 Phoenix House 
 Project Recovery Detox Center 
 Project Recovery Outpatient Services 
 Rescue Mission 
 Salvation Army Hospitality House 
 Sanctuary Psychiatric Center/House 
 Sobering Center 
 Zona Seca 

 
The main criteria for determining the highest priorities were:  1. the use as a treatment 
facility; 2. the volume of people who live in a facility; 3. the volume of people to go to a 
facility daily, and 4. the sensitivity of people at a particular facility. 
 
The locations of these 17 uses are not shown on the maps, to maintain anonymity.  
However, these locations were used to modify the allowable areas for medical 
marijuana dispensaries.  A buffer of 500 feet was drawn around parcels containing the 
highest priority recovery facilities, and the allowable areas were reduced using the same 
criteria as was used for parks and schools.  Only full blocks where dispensaries would 
be allowed on both sides of the street were included.   
 
Following the Council’s request that the ordinance should attempt to  find a balance 
between protecting those in recovery, and providing a reasonable area for dispensaries 
to locate, staff determined that a 500-foot buffer around the highest priority recovery 
facilities provides an appropriate balance.  A buffer of 1000 feet, as was used around 
Casa Esperanza, would almost fully eliminate the Mission, Downtown East and 
Downtown West areas.  A buffer of 750 feet would allow a few more block faces in 
these areas, but would also have a very limited area in which dispensaries could be 
located. 
 
The 500’ buffer around the highest priority recovery facilities affected the following 
areas: 
 
1. Mission.  Removed the following blocks from consideration for dispensaries:  

o 1700 block of State Street 



Ordinance Committee Report 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance Revisions 
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 

 

2. Downtown East.  Removed the following two blocks: 
o 300 block of East Cota 
o 500-600 block of Laguna 

3. Downtown West.  Removed the following 21 blocks: 
o 0-200 block of Carrillo 
o 800-1000 blocks of Chapala 
o 800-1000 blocks of De la Vina 
o 900 block of St. Vincent 
o 00-100 blocks of W. Canon Perdido 
o 00 block of W. Figueroa 
o 00 block of W. Haley 
o 00-200 blocks of W. Gutierrez 
o 300-400 blocks of Chapala 
o 300-400 blocks of De la Vina 
o 00 block of East Gutierrez 
o 00 block of Parker Way 

 
Additionally, the entire Mesa area was removed from the allowable locations, as 
discussed at the Council meeting on February 23, 2010.  See Attachments 1-7 for 
detailed information on areas where dispensaries would be allowed. 
 
Possible Ordinance Regulations to Ensure Collective or Cooperative Distribution 
of Medical Marijuana: 
 
At the request of the City Council, the City Attorney’s office will brief the Committee on 
the requirements of the state Health & Safety Code (the “SB 420 statutes”) which allow 
the distribution of medical marijuana under certain limited circumstances. In particular, 
the City Attorney’s office will review the August 2008 Guidelines for the use of Medical 
Marijuana written by the state Attorney General’s office which explain in detail how 
medical marijuana may be cultivated by “primary caregivers” (a term specifically defined 
in the SB 420 statutes) and provided to “qualified patients” under certain expressly 
narrow circumstances which allow the “primary caregivers” to recoup their cultivation 
expenses only. For the most part, as the Attorney General’s guidelines point out that, 
where medical marijuana is cultivated and distributed on a group basis (i.e., other than 
on a person to person basis), the SB 420 statutes only allow such cultivation and 
distribution to occur through the legal form of a group collective or a cooperative. 
 
The City Attorney’s office will also discuss how some other cities (such as Los Angeles 
and Long Beach) have attempted to enact medical marijuana ordinances which impose 
detailed recordkeeping and inspection requirements on storefront “dispensaries” in 



Ordinance Committee Report 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary Ordinance Revisions 
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 

 

order to verify that the medical marijuana being provided is only cultivated and 
distributed in a manner fully consistent with the SB 420 statutes and only being given to 
documented members of a clearly established collective or cooperative and, most 
importantly, that this is occurring only on a cost reimbursement basis.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Outer State Street Area Map 
 2. Upper De la Vina Area Map 
 3. Mission Area Map 
 4. Downtown East and West Area Map 
 5. Milpas Area Map 
 6. Cottage Hospital Area Map 
 7. Revised List of Allowable Areas for Dispensaries 
 
PREPARED BY: Danny Kato, Senior Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ST
AT

E S
T

HWY 101

MODOC RD

VIA
 LU

CE
RO

CALLE REAL

S HOPE AVE

HITCHCOCK WAY

N HOPE AVE

N ONTARE RD

SA
N 

RE
MO

 D
R

ONRAM
P

OFFRAMP

SU
NS

ET
 R

D

MA
DR

ON
A D

R

VIA
 LA

GU
NA

TOYON DR MC
CA

W 
AV

E

N LA CUMBRE RD

GROVE LN

LA
 C

OL
IN

A R
D

CANON DR

S ONTARE RD

MA
RI

CO
PA

 D
R

LO
S P

IN
OS

 D
R

SU
NS

ET
 D

R

S LA CUMBRE RD

LEE DR

PEACH GROVE LN

CA
ME

LL
IA 

LN

APPLE GROVE LN STEVENS RD

SA
N 

JO
SE

 LN

SA
NT

A M
AR

IA 
LN

AV
ON

 LN

AMAPOLA DR

VIA DIEGO

STATE ST NB OFFRAMP

CA
PR

I D
R

LA
 R

AD
A

SA
N 

GA
BR

IE
L L

N

CALLE NOGUERA

RICHLAND DR

LIN
CO

LN
WO

OD
 D

R

AR
DI

LL
A D

R

BR
EN

T S
T

FA
IR

FA
X 

RD

BROADMOOR PLAZA

S LA CUMBRE LN

PLAZA AVE

ADAIR DR

MONTEREY PINES ST

AL
LE

Y 1
00

 B
LO

CK
 N

. O
NT

AR
E R

D

WOODLEY CT

OS
ITO

 C
T

OFFRAMP

ON
RA

MP

ONRAM
P

CA
LL

E R
EA

L

CA
PR

I D
R

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Ou
ter

 St
ate

 St
ree

t µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

Sta
te 

St.
 Pr

oh
ibi

tio
n

Bri
nk

erh
off

 D
istr

ict
10

00
' fr

om
 C

as
a E

sp
era

nz
a

All
ow

ed
 w/

o R
ec

ov
ery

 Fa
cili

tie
s

Ex
ist

ing
_D

isp
en

sa
rie

s
St

atu
s Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 O
pe

rat
ing

Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 BP

 Is
su

ed
Ap

pe
ale

d
Pe

nd
ing

No
nc

on
for

mi
ng

Fo
r c

olo
red

 m
ap

s, 
go

 to
 w

ww
.Sa

nta
Ba

rba
raC

A.g
ov

/R
es

ide
nt/

Ma
jor

_P
lan

nin
g_

Eff
ort

s/M
ed

ica
l M

ari
jua

na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 1

ATTACHMENT 1



ST
AT

E S
T

DE LA VINA ST

ST
AN

LE
Y D

R

SERENA RD

W ALAMAR AVE

SA
MAR

KA
ND

 DR

LAS POSITAS RD

CHAPALA 
ST

WY
OL

A R
D

VERNON RD

LOMITA RD

AR
DEN

 RD

HERMOSA RD

E ALAMAR AVE

CA
LL

E N
OG

UE
RA

W CONSTANCE AVE

MI
RA

DE
RO

 D
R

VE
RD

E V
IST

A D
R

CUESTA RD

W QUINTO ST

EL PRADO RD

ARCHER'S ALLEY

W CALLE CRESPIS

VERNAL AVE

ORELLA
 ST

PE
RE

GR
IN

A R
D

E C
AL

LE
 CR

ES
PIS

EL VEDADO LN

CLINTON TERRACE

W CALLE LAURELES

AL
LE

Y 1
00

 B
LO

CK
 C

AL
LE

 AL
AM

O
CA

LL
E A

LA
MO

AL
LE

Y 1
00

 B
LO

CK
 C

AL
LE

 PA
LO

RA
DO

CALLE CAPISTRANO

E CALLE LAURELES

ALLE
Y B 20

0 B
LO

CK W. ALAMAR AV
E

VE
RD

E V
IST

A D
R

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Up
pe

r D
e l

a V
ina

µ
Le

ge
nd Pa

rks
Sc

ho
ols

50
0' 

fro
m 

Pa
rks

50
0' 

fro
m 

Sc
ho

ols
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 2

ATTACHMENT 2



STAT
E ST

BATH ST
CHAPALA 

ST

DE LA
 VINA ST

ANACAPA 
ST

HWY 10
1

CASTIL
LO

 ST

GARDEN ST

W ISLAY ST

E ISLAY ST

SANTA 
BARBARA S

T

E VALERIO ST

W VALERIO ST

W SOLA ST
E ARRELLAGA ST

E SOLA ST

LAGUNA S
T

W PEDREGOSA ST

W ARRELLAGA ST W MICHELTORENA ST

E MICHELTORENA ST

SAN PA
SCUAL S

T

W VICTORIA ST

OFFRAMPW LOS OLIV
OS ST

ON
RA

MP
E PEDREGOSA ST

W PADRE ST

SUNSET A
VE

E MISSION ST

E VICTORIA ST

W MISSION ST

W ANAPAMU ST

OLIV
E ST

SAN ANDRES ST

E PADRE ST

LA PAZ AVE

TH
OMAS AV

E

JESMARY LN

W PUEBLO ST

E ANAPAMU ST

ARLIN
GTON AVE

SHERIDAN AV
E

ROSSIER LN
AMERICAN AVE

W PUEBLO ST

OF
FR

AM
P

OF
FR

AM
P

W PEDREGOSA ST

ON
RA

MP

W VALERIO ST

W PADRE ST

W MISSION ST

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Mi
ss

ion

µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

Sta
te 

St.
 Pr

oh
ibi

tio
n

All
ow

ed
 Ar

ea
s -

 Pr
op

os
ed

 on
 2/

23
/10

All
ow

ed
 w/

o R
ec

ov
ery

 Fa
cili

tie
s

Ex
ist

ing
_D

isp
en

sa
rie

s
St

atu
s Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 O
pe

rat
ing

Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 BP

 Is
su

ed
Ap

pe
ale

d
Pe

nd
ing

No
nc

on
for

mi
ng

Fo
r c

olo
red

 m
ap

s, 
go

 to
 w

ww
.Sa

nta
Ba

rba
raC

A.g
ov

/R
es

ide
nt/

Ma
jor

_P
lan

nin
g_

Eff
ort

s/M
ed

ica
l M

ari
jua

na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 3

ATTACHMENT 3



STAT
E ST

HWY 101

BATH ST

CHAPALA 
ST

GARDEN ST

ANACAPA 
ST

DE LA
 VINA S

T

OLIV
E ST

CASTIL
LO

 ST

E COTA ST

LAGUNA S
T

E HALEY ST

SANTA 
BARBARA S

T

E ORTEGA ST

W CARRILLO ST

W SOLA ST

W COTA ST

E GUTIERREZ ST

E CARRILLO ST

W ORTEGA ST
E FIGUEROA ST

E CANON PERDIDO ST

W HALEY ST

W VICTORIA ST W ANAPAMU ST

E DE LA GUERRA ST

E ANAPAMU ST

W FIGUEROA ST

E YANONALI ST

N SALSIPUEDES ST

ONRAMP

E SOLA ST

E VICTORIA ST

OFFR
AMP

SAN PA
SCUAL S

T

W CANON PERDIDO ST

GRAY AV
E

W MICHELTORENA ST

W MONTECITO ST

W ARRELLAGA ST

VINE AV
E

W GUTIERREZ ST

FIG
 AV

E

WENTW
ORTH

 AV
E

CHINO ST
HELENA AV

E

N QUARANTIN
A S

T

EUCLID
 AV

E

E MASON ST

SAN ANDRES ST

ROSE AV
E

PICO AVE

E CABRILL
O BLVD

W VALERIO ST

LLOYD AVE

PALM AVE

CURLEY AV
E

MARILL
A A

VE

ORANGE AV
E

RUTH AVE

KIMBERLY AV
E

W DE LA
 GUERRA ST

WALNUT A
VE

BRADBURY AV
E

EL C
ASERIO

ARLIN
GTON AVE

EQUESTRIAN AVE

RICHARDSON AVE

PARKER WY

DIBBLEE AVE

E MONTECITO ST

REY RD

COTTAGE GROVE AVE

ALLEY 400 B
LOCK N BATH ST

DE LA
 GUERRA STE DE LA GUERRA ST

PALM AVE

OFFRAMP
CHAPALA 

ST
ON

RA
MP

W ANAPAMU ST

ON
RA

MP

SANTA 
BARBARA S

T

ON
RA

MP

OFFR
AMP

OF
FR

AM
P

ANACAPA 
ST

OFF
RAM

P

ONRAM
P

ON
RA

MP

OFFR
AMP

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Do
wn

tow
n E

as
t a

nd
 W

es
t µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

Sta
te 

St.
 Pr

oh
ibi

tio
n

Bri
nk

erh
off

 D
istr

ict
All

ow
ed

 Ar
ea

s -
 Pr

op
os

ed
 on

 2/
23

/10
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 4

ATTACHMENT 4



HW
Y 1

01

N MILP
AS ST

E HALEY ST

E MASON ST

N ALIS
OS ST

E GUTIERREZ ST

E MONTECITO ST

N NOPAL S
T

E COTA ST

N QUARANTIN
A S

T

QUINIENTOS ST

S MILP
AS ST

N SOLEDAD ST

OF
FR

AM
P

OLIV
E ST

S ALIS
OS ST

CARPINTERIA ST

N VOLUNTARIO ST

ON
RA

MP

BOND AVE

N SA
LIN

AS
 ST

E Y
AN

ON
AL

I S
T

N SALSIPUEDES ST

REDDICK ST

S VOLU
NTARIO ST

CACIQUE ST

N CALLE
 CESAR CHAVEZ

S SOLEDAD ST

SALIN
AS PL

UNION AVE

PALM AVE

S QUARANTINA S
T

ALLA
IRE ST

OAK ST

WILS
ON AV

E

EDISON AV
E

ALPHONSE ST

LAGUNA S
T

GARDEN ST

NIELPARK ST

POWERS AV
E

LA 
CADENA S

T

ELIZ
ABETH ST

BREGANTE LN

JENNINGS AVE

LA
WR

EN
CE

 AV
E

NOPALIT
OS WAY

CL
IFT

ON
 ST

JUANA MARIA A
VE

RICHARDSON AVE

INDIO MUERTO ST

CITR
US AV

E

ASHLEY AV
E

ALLE
Y 60

0 B
LO

CK GUTIERREZ ST

SY
CA

MO
RE

 LN

CACIQUE ST

QUINIENTOS ST

OF
FR

AM
P

E YANONALI ST

N VOLUNTARIO ST

ON
RA

MP

OF
FR

AM
P

E YANONALI ST

NO
PA

LIT
OS

 W
AYMe
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Mi
lpa

s

µ

Le
ge

nd Pa
rks

Sc
ho

ols
50

0' 
fro

m 
Pa

rks
50

0' 
fro

m 
Sc

ho
ols

10
00

' fr
om

 C
as

a E
sp

era
nz

a
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 5

ATTACHMENT 5



BATH ST

W PUEBLO ST

DE LA
 VINA ST

CASTIL
LO

 ST

W QUINTO ST

W JU
NIPERO ST

CHAPALA 
ST

OAK PA
RK LN

W ALAMAR AVE

CA
LL

E R
EA

L

W LOS OLIV
OS ST

TA
LL

AN
T R

D

W PADRE ST

HW
Y 1

01

ORELLA
 ST

NOGALES AVE

OF
FR

AM
P

JESMARY LN

SA
NT

A A
NI

TA
 R

D

FLE
TC

HER AV
E

ALLE
Y 19

00 
BLO

CK QUINTO
 ST

WELLI
NGTO

N AV
E

STAT
E ST

VERNON RD

PARKWAY DR

OAK CREST DR

W CONSTANCE AVE

ALLEY 200 B
LOCK W. QUINTO ST

ALLE
Y 10

0 B
LO

CK W. JU
NIPERO ST

BATH ST

W JU
NIPERO ST

W ALAMAR AV
E

W PUEBLO ST

CASTIL
LO

 ST

W LOS OLIV
OS ST

OAK CREST DR

Me
dic

al 
Ca

nn
ab

is 
Dis

pe
ns

ari
es

Co
tta

ge
 H

os
pit

al µ
Le

ge
nd Pa

rks
Sc

ho
ols

50
0' 

fro
m 

Pa
rks

50
0' 

fro
m 

Sc
ho

ols
All

ow
ed

 w/
o R

ec
ov

ery
 Fa

cili
tie

s
Ex

ist
ing

_D
isp

en
sa

rie
s

St
atu

s Ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 O

pe
rat

ing
Ap

pro
ve

d a
nd

 BP
 Is

su
ed

Ap
pe

ale
d

Pe
nd

ing
No

nc
on

for
mi

ng
Fo

r c
olo

red
 m

ap
s, 

go
 to

 w
ww

.Sa
nta

Ba
rba

raC
A.g

ov
/R

es
ide

nt/
Ma

jor
_P

lan
nin

g_
Eff

ort
s/M

ed
ica

l M
ari

jua
na

Ma
rch

 3,
 20

10

Att
ac

hm
en

t 6

ATTACHMENT 6



 
EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 28.80 

ALLOWED LOCATION EXHIBIT  
REVISED 3/3/10 

 
1. Outer State Street Area: 
 

a. 3400 - 3900 blocks of State Street 
b. All parcels on south La Cumbre Road 
c. All parcels on south La Cumbre Lane 
d. All parcels on La Cumbre Plaza Lane 
e. 00-100 blocks of south Hope Avenue 
 

2. Upper De la Vina Area: 
 

a. 2600 – 2900 blocks of De la Vina Street 
 
3. Mission Street Area: 
 

a. 1900-2000 blocks of De la Vina Street 
b. 100 block of west Mission Street 
c. 1800 block of State Street 
d. 1400 block of Chapala Street 
 

4. Downtown West Area: 
 

a. 600-700 blocks of Chapala 
b. 300-400 blocks of west Carrillo 
c. 100 blocks of west De la Guerra 
d. 00-100 blocks of west Ortega 
 

5. Downtown East Area: 
 

a. 900 block of Laguna Street 
b. 400 block of east Cota 
c. 300 block of east Carrillo 
 

6. Milpas Street: 
 
a. 00–400 blocks of north Milpas Street 
 

7. Cottage Hospital Area: 
 

a. 200 block of Nogales 
b. 200-400 blocks of west Pueblo 
c. 2400-2500 blocks of Bath 
d. 2300 block of Castillo 
e. 300 block of West Junipero 

ATTACHMENT 7 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: March 16, 2010 Das Williams, Chair  
TIME: 1:00 p.m.  Dale Francisco 
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Michael Self 
 630 Garden Street  
 
James L. Armstrong  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Interim Finance Director 

 
 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
1. Subject:  Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee: 
A. Recommend that the City Council authorize amending a loan agreement with 

Transition House to increase the loan amount by $170,000 in federal Home 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds for construction of new units on 
the property and amending certain provisions in the loan agreement related to 
project financing; 

B. Recommend that the Agency Board approve a loan of $39,391 for construction of 
new units on the property as a contingency in the event that Fiscal Year 
2010/2011 HOME funds are not awarded in time; 

C. Recommend that the Agency Board approve a loan of $150,000 to Mom’s LP in 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside funds for rehabilitation of existing 
units on the property; and 

D. Recommend that the above actions be taken subject to the condition that Mom’s 
LP secure low income housing tax credits for the project. 

 



File Code No. 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
TO: Finance Committee 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 

Department 
SUBJECT: Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Finance Committee: 
 
A. Recommend that the City Council authorize amending a loan agreement with 

Transition House to increase the loan amount by $170,000 in federal Home 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds for construction of new units on 
the property and amending certain provisions in the loan agreement related to 
project financing; 

B. Recommend that the Agency Board approve a loan of $39,391 for construction of 
new units on the property as a contingency in the event that Fiscal Year 
2010/2011 HOME funds are not awarded in time; 

C. Recommend that the Agency Board approve a loan of $150,000 to Mom’s LP in 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside funds for rehabilitation of existing 
units on the property; and 

D. Recommend that the above actions be taken subject to the condition that Mom’s 
LP secure low income housing tax credits for the project. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The City and Redevelopment Agency have provided three loans and one grant to 
Transition House over the past 11 years for various improvements to Transition House 
facilities located at 421 East Cota Street.  The most recent loan was approved by 
Council on July 21, 2009.  Since that time, there have been changes to the Transition 
House proposed financial plan. Transition House reports that it will lose approximately 
$2 million in funding previously identified. Half of this decrease is due to a loss of 
funding from the State’s Supportive Housing Program, and the other half is due to 
reductions in the value of low income housing tax credits expected to be awarded to the 
project. Transition House has taken a number of steps to compensate for the $2 million 
loss of funds and has succeeded in limiting their request for additional funds from the 
City and Redevelopment Agency to $320,000. 
BACKGROUND: 
For 25 years, Transition House has provided food, shelter and services to homeless 
families in Santa Barbara. Transition House acquired an old warehouse located at 
434 East Ortega in 1992 and converted it to a family homeless shelter with ground-floor 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 

administrative offices and program space. In 1999, the family owners of the former 
Mom’s Restaurant sold their property at a discounted price to Transition House. This 
property included the Mom’s Restaurant building on Cota Street plus an adjacent 
modern mixed-use building at the corner of Olive and Cota with eight apartments 
located over ground-floor commercial space (renamed the Cordover Center after the 
organization’s original Executive Director, Jill Cordover). 
The Mom’s property on Cota Street and the family homeless shelter on Ortega Street 
are located on the same block and are connected via a driveway (see attached site 
plan). After acquiring the Mom’s property, Transition House was then able to embark on 
an ambitious plan to develop the properties as one cohesive campus that addresses the 
needs of homeless families in a comprehensive fashion. Transition House first created 
new space for offices and its programs and support services by converting the ground 
floor commercial space in the Cordover Center. This made available the ground-floor 
space in the family shelter on Ortega and enabled Transition House to devote that 
building exclusively to shelter use. Transition House renovated the shelter and 
reconfigured the space to give families more privacy and to increase the number of 
families served. 
Meanwhile, as vacancies arose in the eight apartments on the second floor of the 
Cordover Center, they were filled with client families that successfully completed 
Transition House programs and demonstrated readiness for more independent living. 
As described below, the focus now shifts to the Mom’s Restaurant building, which has 
been leased during the interim to antiques and furniture merchants (Cominiche’s). 
DISCUSSION: 
Proposed Project 
Transition House plans to demolish the Mom’s Restaurant building and construct a new 
two-story mixed-use building with 9,700 square feet that will feature eight new 
apartments for client families and a 2,000 square foot infant care center and offices on 
the ground floor. The new building will include an elevator and a bridge connection to 
the adjacent Cordover Center building. With its location in a flood zone, the site area for 
the new building will be raised about three feet above grade and will include access 
ramps. The Cordover Center will also receive a new roof and repairs will be made to the 
eight existing apartments. 
The proposed eight new units in the new building will include six 2-bedroom units with 
850-950 square feet and two 3-bedroom units with 1,070 square feet. When combined 
with the existing eight units, this will result in four 1-bedroom units, ten 2-bedroom units, 
and two 3-bedroom units. Rents will range from $437 to $1,050 per month, depending 
on size and income targeting. The units will be targeted exclusively to low and very-low 
income households. Six units will be targeted to households earning 30 percent of the 
Area Median Income (AMI). Eight units will be targeted to 50 percent AMI, and two units 
will be targeted to 60 percent AMI. 
The City’s Staff Hearing Officer and the City’s Architectural Board of Review have 
approved the project and the project’s design. Final construction drawings are expected 
to be completed soon in preparation for securing bids from contractors. Transition 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 

House hopes to secure an award of low income housing tax credits in June and start 
construction in September. 
Development Team 
In order to be eligible for tax credit financing, Transition House established Mom’s L.P., 
a California limited partnership, which consists of two general partners – Santa Barbara 
Housing Assistance Corporation and Garden Court, Inc.  Both entities serve as general 
partners in a number of affordable housing projects, including El Carrillo and Garden 
Court. Transition House will sell the land and existing buildings to Mom’s L.P., but will 
retain the option to purchase the land and buildings back after the first 10 years of the 
new project’s operation. 
The Housing Authority will assist Mom’s LP in managing construction of the new project, 
just as it assisted Transition House with the renovation of the Ortega family shelter. 
Artisan Court, the Housing Authority’s new affordable housing project currently under 
construction, is located directly across the street. The two projects share the same 
architecture team of Christine Pierron and Mark Wienke. 
Project Financing 
Over the past 11 years, the City and Redevelopment Agency have provided the 
following financial assistance to the project, listed in chronological order: 
 

RDA loan for acquisition of the property  $320,000  
 

RDA loan for predevelopment of the new Mom’s residential units    120,000 
 
HOME loan for construction of the new Mom’s residential units  
 

   
  680,000 

CDBG grant for rehabilitation of the existing Cordover units    100,000 
 
Council approved the $680,000 HOME loan to Transition House on July 21, 2009. As 
specified in the Council Agenda Report, Transition House prepared a financial plan for 
the project that was based on their 2009 application for low income housing tax credits. 
Unfortunately, their application was not selected for award. Competition for this program 
is extremely steep, and the Mom’s Place project was not as prepared to start 
construction as other competing projects. 
Transition House plans to submit a new application for the next round of low income 
housing tax credits. However, the financial plan was revised considerably due to a 
$2,140,822 reduction in expected funding.  Part of the funding reduction is due to the 
loss of a $1,037,000 loan from the State’s Supportive Housing Program. State funds 
have since been frozen, and it appears the State will not be able to consider new loans 
for at least three years. The other reduction is the result of the loss of federal stimulus 
funding which was used last year to augment the value of the tax credits. New tax 
credits awarded in 2010 will not receive this augmentation benefit, resulting in a loss of 
$1,103,822 in the value to Transition House of the anticipated tax credit award. 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 

Additional Funds Needed 
Fortunately, Transition House has identified ways to cover all but $320,000 of the 
$2,140,822 funding shortfall through cost reductions and identification of other funding 
sources. Cost reductions were realized through reducing the size of the building in 
response to input from the City’s Architectural Board of Review. Moreover, based on 
recent bid prices received by the City’s Housing Authority for the nearby Artisan Court 
project, Transition House lowered their estimates accordingly, resulting in further cost 
reductions. 
Transition House succeeded in securing additional permanent financing for the project 
through a commercial bank loan from Montecito Bank and Trust (MBT) in first security 
position on title in the amount of $1,369,000. Critical to Transition House’s success in 
securing the loan is the anticipated award of eight project-based Section 8 units from 
the City’s Housing Authority. Under the Section 8 program, federal funds are used to 
subsidize the difference between the fair market rent and what tenants can afford to 
pay. With the guarantee of receiving full fair market rent for these units, the bank is 
willing to make the loan to Transition House. 
For the remaining $320,000 of the $2,140,832 shortfall, Transition House requests 
additional funding from the City and Redevelopment Agency. For the new construction 
portion of the project, an additional $170,000 in HOME funds is requested and for the 
rehabilitation portion of the project, $150,000 in Redevelopment Agency housing set-
aside funds is requested. This would result in a combined subsidy of City and 
Redevelopment Agency funds that totals $1,540,000 for the 16 unit project, an amount 
that is consistent with City funding of other recent affordable housing projects in the 
City. 
The existing HOME loan for construction of the new residential units would then be 
increased from $680,000 to $850,000, and the existing loan agreement would be 
amended to reflect the new changes in the project’s financial plan. A new 
Redevelopment Agency loan in the amount of $150,000 would then be dedicated to 
rehabilitation of the existing units. The proposed HOME loan increase and the proposed 
new Redevelopment Agency loan would be subject to the condition that Mom’s LP 
secure an award of low income housing tax credits for the project. 
The Mom’s Place project is located outside of the boundaries of the Central City 
Redevelopment Project area.  The California Redevelopment Law provides that a 
redevelopment agency may use affordable housing set-aside funds outside a project 
area if the legislative body makes certain findings regarding use of the funds.  On 
September 16, 2008, the City Council and Agency Board adopted a joint resolution 
finding that the use of the Agency housing set-aside funds for the Transition House 
project would be of benefit to the Central City Redevelopment Project area. 
Subordination of City Covenant 
Transition House and the City executed an amended affordability control covenant in 
2009 when the Agency made its predevelopment loan. This document sets limits for the 
income of tenants and the rents to be charged by Transition House. The covenant will 
be replaced by a new covenant entered into with Mom’s LP and covering all sixteen 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 5 

affordable units. As is standard practice in such cases, the lender (MBT) and  perhaps 
the tax credit investors will require their deeds of trust securing their funding and 
regulatory agreements be given senior position on title in the unlikely event that the 
project defaults on repayment or otherwise. These entities may ask the City to 
subordinate the City’s affordability covenant to their deeds of trust.  
The City typically agrees to such subordination if the City is afforded the right to cure 
any default and take over the operation of the project. This means that if the Mom's LP 
project fails to make payments on the MBT loan, for example, the City will have a 
chance to pay the past-due amounts to the bank and stop the bank from foreclosing. 
This would protect the City’s investment in this affordable project by assuring continued 
affordability. If the City did not cure within a limited time, the bank could foreclose and 
the affordability controls would terminate. 
Since Agency housing set-aside funds constitute part of the financing, subordination of 
the City’s affordability covenant is subject to State redevelopment law. California Health 
and Safety Code Section 33334.14 requires that certain findings be made if affordability 
restrictions are to be subordinated. The key finding is that no other "economically 
feasible alternative" source of financing without the condition of subordination is 
available. That is clearly the case in this instance. State law also requires that the 
subordination be subject to the right to cure the default and take over the property, thus 
preserving the affordability restrictions. The current and new affordability covenants will 
provide the City with this right. 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
The City has $130,609 in federal HOME funds that are specifically earmarked for use by 
specially designated nonprofits known as Community Development Housing 
Organizations (CHDOs), and Transition House is one of the City’s three nonprofit 
organizations that meet federal CHDO requirements. Typically, HOME awards for the 
upcoming year are announced in January or February. However, this year, the City is 
still awaiting announcement of its Fiscal Year 2010/2011 HOME award.  In the unlikely 
event HOME funds are not awarded by the time they are needed by Transition House, 
RDA funds would be used to make up the $39,391 difference needed for the new 
construction portion of the project. 
The Redevelopment Agency has sufficient Housing Set-Aside funds appropriated to 
cover both the $150,000 needed for the rehabilitation portion of the project and the 
$39,391 possibly needed for the new construction (in the event the HOME funds are not 
awarded in time).  
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
The new construction portion of the project will feature photovoltaic panels on the roof, 
tankless water heaters for domestic water, low water consumption plumbing fixtures, 
and linoleum flooring and other finish materials with recycled content. The new 
construction has been designed with an interior court to allow for cross ventilation and 
natural light. 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Increased Funding For Transition House Affordable Housing Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 6 

The rehabilitation portion of the project will feature the conversion of single-pane 
windows to energy-efficient dual-pane windows, energy-efficient lighting fixtures, energy 
efficient appliances, and flow restrictors for kitchen and bathroom fixtures. 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter from Transition House 

2. Site Location Map 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager/SK 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 







Shelter
Mom’s

Cordover
Center

Artisan Court



 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
February 25, 2010 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:34 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Schneider. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael Self, 
Bendy White, Das Williams, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
No one wished to speak.  
 
NOTICES  
 
The City Clerk has on Monday, February 22, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, 
and on the Internet.   
 
WORK SESSIONS  
 
Subject:  Budget Work Session  (230.05)    
 
Recommendation:  That Council receive a report from staff covering revenue and 
expenditure projections and potential strategies for addressing projected General Fund 
budget shortfalls for Fiscal Years 2010 and 2011. 

(Cont'd) 

2/25/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



 

Subject:  Budget Work Session  (230.05)    
 
Documents: 
 - February 25, 2010, report from the Interim Finance Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong, Interim Finance Director Robert 

Samario, Fire Chief Andrew DiMizio, Assistant City Administrator/Community 
Development Director Paul Casey, Police Chief Camarino Sanchez. 

 - Members of the Public:  Nikolai Lambert; Terry Tyler; Jon Turner, Santa Barbara 
City Firefighters Association; George Green, Service Employees International 
Union Local 620.  

 
Discussion: 

Staff began their presentation by describing the City’s budgetary/financial 
structure, including the sources and uses of General Fund monies.  Staff also 
defined significant projected General Fund shortfalls to be resolved for the 
remainder of Fiscal Year 2010 and for Fiscal Year 2011.  Potential strategies to 
address these problems were outlined, and the need for labor concessions in 
order to avoid significant service cuts was emphasized.  All Councilmembers 
made comments, and their questions were answered. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 3:52 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

2/25/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 2, 2010 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the joint meeting of the Council and Redevelopment 
Agency to order at 2:00 p.m.  (The Finance Committee and Ordinance Committee, 
which are ordinarily scheduled to meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.)  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Michael Self, 
Bendy White, Das Williams, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
City Clerk Services Manager Cynthia M. Rodriguez. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS  
 
1.  Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City’s appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through March 31, 2010. 

 
 Document: 
  March 2, 2010, report from the Assistant City Administrator.  
 

Speakers: 
 Staff:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong and award recipients Mark 
 Alvarado, Andrew DiMizio, Jose Marquez and D. Paul McCaffrey. 
 

                  (Cont’d)



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. (Cont’d) 
 

Action:  By consensus, the Council recognized the following employees: 
 

10-Year Pin 
Linda Tuomi, Office Specialist II, Police 

Aundray Richey, Senior Streets Maintenance Worker, Public Works 
Juan Salcedo, Senior Streets Maintenance Worker, Public Works 

Jeffrey Miller, Senior Grounds Maintenance Worker II, Parks and Recreation 
Stephen Williams, Ground Maintenance Worker II, Parks and Recreation 

Tracy Lincoln, Airport Operations Manager, Airport 
 

15-Year Pin 
John Franklin, Fire Engineer, Fire 
Michael Hoose, Fire Captain, Fire 

Michael De Ponce, Fire Captain, Fire 
Michael Myers, Fire Engineer, Fire 

Rose Marie Bell, Library Assistant I, Library 
 

20-Year Pin 
Kim Sprague, Legal Secretary, City Attorney 

Robert Hazel, Fire Captain, Fire 
James Pfleging, Police Lieutenant, Police 

 
25-Year Pin 

David Aguailar, Fire Captain, Fire 
Thomas Eccles, Police Officer, Police 

Primitivo Gonzalez, Lead Equipment Technician, Public Works 
 

30-Year Pin 
Andrew DiMizio, Fire Chief, Fire 

D. Paul McCaffrey, Police Lieutenant, Police 
Mark Alvarado, Equipment Operator, Parks and Recreation 
Jose Marquez, Water Distribution Supervisor, Public Works 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Speakers:  Kenneth Loch; Bob Hansen; Ruth Wilson; Kate Longstory; Chuck Rose, 
Santa Barbara Pony Baseball.  
 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Items Nos. 2 - 4 and 6 - 8)  
 
The title of the resolution related to the Consent Calendar was read.  
 
Motion:   
 Council/Agency Members House/Francisco to approve the Consent Calendar as 
 recommended.   
Vote:  
 Unanimous roll call vote.  
 
2.  Subject:  Minutes   
 

Recommendation: That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of February 9, 2010, the special meeting of February 11, 
2010, and the regular meeting of February 16, 2010 (cancelled).   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation.   

 
3.  Subject:  Acceptance Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport Improvement 
 Program Grant For Santa Barbara Airport (560.04)   
 

Recommendation: That Council accept and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute, on behalf of the City, an FAA Airport Improvement Program Grant in an 
amount not to exceed $3,100,000 to be distributed in two grants, Part A and Part 
B, of Project No. AIP-3-06-0235-41 for the Airline Terminal Improvement project 
and the purchase of an airfield sweeper.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement Nos. 23,304 and 23,305 
(March 2, 2010, report from the Airport Director; February 28, 2010, letter from 
Paula Westbury).   

 
4.  Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Spirit Of ’76 (230.02)   
 

Recommendation: That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a 
Community Promotion Contract with Spirit of '76 in an amount of $11,450 for the 
period covering March 15, 2010, through August 30, 2010.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 23,306 (March 2, 2010, 
report from the Interim Finance Director).   

 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
 
Item No. 5 appears in the Redevelopment Agency minutes. 
 
6.  Subject:  Contract For Design Services For Concrete Structural Upgrades To 
 Parking Structures 2, 9 And 10 (550.05)   
 
 Recommendation: 

A.  That the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Board authorize the expenditure 
of $121,000 for design and engineering services for Structural Upgrades 
to Parking Structures 2, 9 and 10 (Project);  

B.  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a professional 
services contract with Watry Design, Inc. (Watry), in the amount of 
$82,715, for design services for the Project, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $8,285 for extra services 
of Watry that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; 
and  

C.  Adopt by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Approving and Adopting the Findings Required by Health 
and Safety Code Section 33445 for the Funding of Capital Improvements 
to Redevelopment Agency Owned Parking Structures 2, 9 and 10.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 23,307; Resolution No. 
10-008 (March 2, 2010, joint report from the Assistant City Administrator/Agency 
Deputy Director and Public Works Director; proposed resolution; February 28, 
2010, letter from Paula Westbury).   

 
NOTICES  
 
7.  The City Clerk has on Thursday, February 25, 2010, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet.   

 
8.  A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, March 8, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. to 

the property located at 3714 - 3744 State Street, which is the subject of an 
appeal hearing set for March 9, 2010, at 2:00 p.m.   

 
  This concluded the Consent Calendar.  
 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT  
 
9.  Subject:  Adjustments To Fiscal Year 2010 Parks And Recreation Fees (230.05)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Resolution No. 09-043, 
Establishing Certain City Fees, to Authorize Adjustments to Parks and 
Recreation Fees. 

 
 Documents: 
 - March 2, 2010, report from the Parks and Recreation Director. 
 - Proposed Resolution. 
 - March 2, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
       
 Speakers: 
  Staff:  Recreation Programs Manager Sarah Hanna, and Parks and 

Recreation Director Nancy Rapp. 
       
 Motion:   
  Councilmembers House/Francisco to approve the recommendation;  
  Resolution No. 10-009. 
 Vote:  
  Unanimous roll call vote.  
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS  
 
10.  Subject:  Request From Councilmembers House And White Regarding Municipal 
 Code Amendments For Pet Licensing (330.08)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmembers 
House and White to refer amending Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 
6.12, Dog Licensing, to the Ordinance Committee. 

 
 Documents: 
 - March 2, 2010, report from the Chief of Police. 
 - February 26, 2010, letter from Sheila Goffe, Government Relations   
  Director, American Kennel Club. 
 - February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
 - March 1, 2010, letter from Geneva Coats, Secretary, California Federation 
  of Dog Clubs. 
 - March 2, 2010, letter from Chris Zink. 
 
                    (Cont’d) 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

10. (Cont’d) 
 
 Speakers: 

Members of the Public:  Shirley Jansen, Dog Adoption and Welfare Group; 
Dr. Jean Greek, SBVVMA; Nancy McCradie; Glu Carradine; Dr. Ron Faoro, 
Spay/Neuter Task Force; Dr. Toni Frohoff; Peggy Langle, Executive Director, 
Santa Barbara Humane Society; Diana Basehart; Dr. Paula Kislack, D.V.M.; 
Dr. Lee Heller; Tiffany Story; Eliane Martin; Lisa Ann Kelly; Heather Story; 
Yuko Maikawa; Lisa Kenyon; Abbe R. Shaw; Diane Jones; Ginny White; Tom 
Freeman; Jean Avrick; Michelle Kendall. 

 
 Motion:   
  Councilmembers House/White to approve the recommendation. 
 Vote:  
  Unanimous voice vote.  
 
RECESS  
 
4:17 p.m. - 4:28 p.m. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D)  
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 
11.  Subject:  Capital Improvement Projects Second Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 
 2010 (230.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council receive, for information only, a report on the 
City’s Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) for the Second Quarter of Fiscal Year 
2010. 

 
 Documents: 
 - March 2, 2010, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - March 2, 2010, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
 - February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
 
 Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer Pat Kelly, City   
  Administrator James Armstrong. 
 - Members of the Public:  Bonnie Raisin. 
 
 By consensus, the Council received the report.   
 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

12.  Subject:  Discussion Of South Coast Conduit Second Barrel Project (540.06)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council provide conceptual approval for Water 
Resources staff to take the lead in a joint project with other South Coast Water 
Districts to finance and construct a section of pipe between the South portal of 
the Tecolote Tunnel and the Corona Del Mar Water Treatment Plant in Goleta. 

 
 Documents: 
 - March 2, 2010, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
 
 Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Water Resources Manager Rebecca Bjork. 
 - Goleta Water District Board:  Lauren Hanson, Member. 
 - Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board:  Kate Rees, General   
  Manager.   
 
 Motion:   
  Councilmembers House/White to approve the recommendation. 
 Vote:  
  Unanimous voice vote.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS  
 
Information: 
       -   Mayor Schneider reported that she and Councilmember House attended a 

memorial service at Shoreline Park for Sharon Anderson, City of Santa Barbara 
appointee to the Metropolitan Transit District Board, who passed away suddenly 
last week.  

       -   Councilmember White reported as the Council liaison to the Planning 
Commission that the Commission, at its meeting of February 18, 2010, voted 
against the substantial conformance determination for the project at 803 North 
Milpas Street.  

 
RECESS   
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 5:25 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 13 - 16, and stated that no 
reportable action is anticipated.  
 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

CLOSED SESSIONS  
 
13.  Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Wayne Wilcox 
v. City of Santa Barbara, SBSC Case Number 1306126. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
 Documents: 
            March 2, 2010, report from the City Attorney. 
 
 Time: 
            5:26 p.m. - 5:41 p.m. 
 
 No report made.   
 
14.  Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Mark Bookspan 
and Shelley Bookspan v. City of Santa Barbara, SBSC Case Number 1303303. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
 Documents: 
            March 2, 2010, report from the City Attorney. 
 
 Time: 
            5:41 p.m. - 5:58 p.m. 
 
 No report made.   
 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

15.  Subject:  Conference With Real Property Negotiators Regarding 319 West Haley 
 Street (330.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider instructions to 
its negotiators regarding the possible sale of property owned by the City, 
commonly known as 319 West Haley Street.  Instructions to negotiators will 
direct staff regarding the price and terms of a possible sale of the City-owned 
parcel.  Negotiations are held pursuant to the authority of Section 54956.8 of the 
Government Code.  City Negotiators:  Browning Allen, Transportation Manager; 
Don Irelan, Senior Real Property Agent; and Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney, on 
behalf of the City of Santa Barbara, pursuant to the authority of Government 
Code Section 54956.8.  Negotiating Parties:  Pathpoint, Inc.  Under Negotiation:  
Price and terms of payment of a possible sale. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 20 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
 Documents: 
 - March 2, 2010, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
 
 Time: 
            5:58 p.m. - 6:25 p.m. 
 
 No report made.   
 
16.  Subject:  Conference With Real Property Negotiator (330.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session pursuant to the authority 
of Section 54956.8 of the Government Code to consider instructions to City staff 
and the City Attorney regarding potential lease negotiations with R. D. Olson 
Development for a four-acre parcel of real property located at 6100 Hollister 
Avenue at the Airport, bounded by Hollister Avenue, Frederic Lopez Road, 
Francis Botello Road and David Love Place, owned by the City of Santa Barbara 
(Parcel 22 of the Airport Specific Plan Map [City Parcel Map No. 20,608]).  City 
Negotiators are: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director; Paul Casey, Assistant City 
Administrator/Community Development; and Sarah Knecht, Assistant City 
Attorney; and negotiator for Lessee is Robert D. Olson, owner. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 20 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

(Continued from February 23, 2010, Agenda Item No. 12) 
  
 Documents: 
 - March 2, 2010, joint report from the Airport Director and City Attorney. 
 - February 28, 2010, letter from Paula Westbury. 
 
                   (Cont’d) 



3/2/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

16. (Cont’d) 
 
 Time: 
            6:25 p.m. - 7:20 p.m. 
 
 Councilmember Williams left the meeting at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 No report made.   
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. to Monday, March 8, 2010, at 1:30 
p.m. at 3714 - 3744 State Street.  
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  CYNTHIA M. RODRIGUEZ, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  550.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  March 16, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
     Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Construction Of Parking Lots 4 And 5 Circulation And 

Accessibility Improvements Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract to Lash Construction (Lash) in their low bid amount of $192,645 

for construction of the Parking Lots 4 and 5 Circulation and Accessibility 
Improvements Project (Project), Bid No. 3592; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $19,265 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to negotiate and execute a City Professional 
Services Agreement with Watry Design (Watry) in the amount of $7,950 for 
construction support services and expenditures of up to $1,000 for extra services 
of Watry that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to negotiate and execute a City Professional 
Services Agreement with Fugro West (Fugro) in the amount of $7,500 for 
material testing services during construction.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
As the last phase in the replacement of all parking revenue equipment, this Project 
involves improving the entrances to Parking Lots 4 and 5 to prevent damage to new 
equipment, improving the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance and 
landscape, and installing fiber optic links. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Parking Lots 4 And 5 Circulation And Accessibility 
Improvements Project 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Project at City Parking Lots 4 (1120 Chapala Street) and 5 (1220 Chapala Street) is 
the last phase of the City’s system-wide replacement of all parking revenue control 
equipment.  The work will include the following:   
 

• Improve the lot entrances to prevent damage to the revenue control equipment 
by large vehicles and delivery trucks 

• Relocate and bring all of the existing ADA accessible parking spaces into 
compliance with current codes 

• Improve accessible paths of travel, removing trip hazards 
• Construct a new ADA compliant booth and correct a drainage problem at Lot 4. 
• Enhance landscaping along both parking lots’ public street frontages and kiosk 

areas 
• Complete the installation of fiber optic links and prepare for the installation of 

updated revenue control equipment 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of seven bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Lash Construction 

Santa Barbara, CA 
 

$192,645 
2. C.S. Legacy Construction 

Chino, CA 
 

$218,907 
3. Granite Construction 
         Santa Barbara, CA 

 
$229,330 

4. Berry General Engineering 
Ventura, CA 

 
$243,445 

5. Newton Construction 
         San Luis Obispo, CA 

 
$250,350 

6. Hanly General 
         Santa Ynez, CA 

 
$263,321 

7. Tal Cal Engineering, Inc. 
West Hills, CA  

 
$269,800 

 
The low bid of $192,645, submitted by Lash, is an acceptable bid that is responsive to 
and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $19,265, or 10%, is typical for this type of 
work and size of project.   



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Parking Lots 4 And 5 Circulation And Accessibility 
Improvements Project 
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Watry in the amount of $7,950 plus extra services for construction support 
services regarding the design, and to produce record drawings upon Project completion. 
 
Staff also recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Fugro in the amount of $7,500 for materials testing.  Fugro is on the City’s 
Prequalified Engineering Services list and is experienced in this type of work.   

 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
City staff mailed letters, distributed flyers, and held public outreach meetings to inform 
merchants, as well as the Downtown Organization, of the upcoming Project and its 
potential impacts.  
 
To mitigate merchant inconveniences during construction, the City will offer free parking 
in each parking lot when under construction, and the contractor will be required to 
complete all work in one lot before starting on the next.   
 
FUNDING   
 
This Project is funded from the Downtown Parking Enterprise and Streets Capital 
Program funds.  There are sufficient appropriated funds to cover the cost of this Project.   
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

Lash Construction $192,645 $19,265 $211,910 

Watry Design $7,950 $1,000 $8,950 

Fugro West $7,500 $0 $7,500 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $228,360 
 

 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Parking Lots 4 And 5 Circulation And Accessibility 
Improvements Project 
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

 

The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design and Analysis (by consultants) $86,847

Design (by City staff) $21,180

 Subtotal $108,027

Lash Construction Contract   $192,645

Construction Change Order Allowance $19,265

Pre-purchased Construction Materials by City (kiosk, revenue 
control equipment) 

$271,324

 Subtotal $483,234

Construction Management/Inspection (by City Staff) $49,000

Watry Design Services During Construction with C/O allowance $8,950

Fugro West Services During Construction $7,500

 Subtotal $65,450

TOTAL PROJECT COST $656,711
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The new revenue control equipment allows programming of entry cards for monthly 
permit holders who use a keycard to access the facility.  This eliminates the need for 
permit holders to pull paper tickets.  The entry equipment also “sleeps” when customers 
are not present, and is only activated when a customer enters the lot, resulting in less 
electrical demand.   
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/EM/mj 
 Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/JWG 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  March 16, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment 

Act Road Overlay Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Nye & Nelson in the amount of $1,045,276 for construction 

of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (Recovery Act) Road Overlay 
Project (Project), Bid No. 3583; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $120,878 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Flowers and Associates (Flowers) in the amount of $68,000 for 
construction support services, and approve expenditures of up to $6,800 for extra 
services of Flowers that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Fugro West, Inc. (Fugro), in the amount of $18,853 for construction 
testing services, and approve expenditures of up to $1,885 for extra services of 
Fugro that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Road Overlay construction contract is funded by the Recovery Act.  A second 
separate Recovery Act Road Maintenance Project is proposed for Council’s approval on 
March 16, 2010.  The total amount of Recovery Act funds authorized for the two 
projects is $2.67 million.  In the Annual Pavement Maintenance Program, a specific 
zone in the City is planned for maintenance each year.  This one time infusion of 
Recovery Act funding was identified to address work on the roads throughout the City.  
This contract is aimed at preserving the surface of City roads by correcting any 
subsurface failures.  



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road Overlay 
Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The proposed work for the Project consists of pavement maintenance and pavement 
overlay.  The pavement maintenance is an effort to repair failed pavement areas prior to 
the final pavement sealing.  The pavement maintenance under this project will 
encompass not only streets slated for a pavement overlay, but will also include areas 
targeted in an upcoming Recovery Act Slurry Project.  The pavement overlay will 
reconstruct over 300,000 square feet or approximately 5 lane miles of severely 
distressed roadway surface.  The road segments that are targeted to receive an overlay 
include section of roads having some of the highest traffic volumes in the City, 
averaging 25,000 to 30,000 vehicles daily.  This Project will address maintenance of 
both asphalt and concrete roads (see attachment for locations of the two proposed 
Recovery Act pavement construction contracts). 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of five bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 
The apparent low bid of $890,575 from Toro Enterprises for construction, was deemed 
non-responsive due to their failure to submit a complete bid.  Below is a list of the four 
remaining responsive bidders. 
 

BIDDER 
BASE BID 
AMOUNT 

(SCHEDULE 
A+B)* 

BID 
ALT. 1 

BID 
ALT. 2 

BID 
ALT. 3 

1. Nye & Nelson 
Ventura, CA 

$967,886 $86,835 $77,390 $77,390

2. Granite Construction Company 
Watsonville, CA 

$1,133,274 $139,000 $129,000 $129,000

3. Lash Construction 
Santa Barbara, CA 

$1,174,935 $152,850 $142,200 $142,200

4. Berry General Engineering 
Ventura, CA 

$1,209,900 $191,944 $185,000 $185,000

  
*Award of Contract Based on Amount of Base Bid (Schedule A plus Schedule B) 
 
The low base bid of $967,886, submitted by Nye & Nelson, is an acceptable bid that is 
responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.  In addition to the 
Base Bid, there are sufficient funds available to include Bid Alternate 3 into the contract 
amount.   



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road Overlay 
Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

The total contract amount is $1,045,276, plus an additional $120,878 for change orders.  
The change order funding recommendation represents approximately 12% and is within 
the typical range for this type of work and size of project.   
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers in the amount of $74,800 for construction management and 
inspection services.  On November 10, 2009, Council approved the selection of Flowers 
to provide professional engineering design, construction management, and inspection 
services for pavement maintenance projects through the end of fiscal Fiscal Year 2012.   
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Fugro in the amount of $20,738 for material testing.  Fugro is experienced 
in this type of work. 
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
The Public Works Department informs the public of ongoing projects.  Informational 
notifications on the Project were mailed to affected residents while in design, and after 
the bids were opened, notifications were mailed to the affected residents and property 
owners.  During the design phase of the Project, City staff worked closely with private 
and public utilities to ensure that their work would be completed prior to the road 
restoration work. 
 
FUNDING   
 
On October 20, 2009, Council accepted and appropriated funds for the work.  Eligible 
construction phase work under this Project is 100% reimbursable by the Recovery Act.  
There are sufficient funds in the Streets Capital Fund to cover the cost of this Project, 
including the City’s share as identified in the tables below. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road Overlay 
Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
 Construction Contract  
(Nye & Nelson) $1,045,276 $120,878 $1,166,154

Construction Management 
and Inspection (Flowers and 
Associates) 

$68,000 $6,800 $74,800

Material Testing 
(Fugro West) $18,853 $1,885 $20,738

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $1,261,692
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs. 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

 
Federal 
Share 

City 
Share 

Total 
Cost 

Design (by Contract and City staff) $0 $42,283 $42,283
 Subtotal $0 $42,283

 
$42,283

Construction Contract  $1,045,276 $0 $1,045,276
Construction Change Order Allowance $120,878 $0 $120,878

 Subtotal $1,166,154 $0 $1,166,154
Project Management (by City Staff)

 
$0 $27,500 $27,500

Construction Management and Inspection (by 
Contract) 

$74,800 $0 $74,800

Material Testing (by Contract) $20,738 $0 $20,738
 Subtotal $95,538 $27,500 $123,038

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,261,692 $69,783 $1,331,475
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
This timely maintenance sustains our roads and minimizes or eliminates the need for 
road reconstruction.  This reduces the use of additional materials and pavement oils, 
both of which deplete our natural resources. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road Overlay 
Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 5 
 

 

ATTACHMENT: Recovery Act Road Overlay and Maintenance Projects Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Principal Civil Engineer/TC/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  330.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Division, Waterfront Department  
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease With Chuck’s Waterfront Grill 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve a lease with Richones, Inc., doing business as Chuck’s 
Waterfront Grill, and introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An 
Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Lease with 
Richones, Inc., Doing Business as Chuck’s Waterfront Grill, located at 113 Harbor Way, 
Effective April 22, 2010. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City and Chuck’s Waterfront Grill (Chuck’s) originally executed a lease on February 
28, 1997. The lease had a term of five-years with seven five-year options.  Chuck’s did 
not exercise the second five-year option and the lease terminated in March 1, 2009.  
Since that time, Chuck’s has been on “hold-over” status while a new lease was under 
negotiation.   The City and Chuck’s agreed that except for the tenant reimbursement 
provision (discussed below) and the addition of standard City lease language, most 
lease terms would remain the same.  Chuck’s lease encompasses 7,505 square feet on 
the first and second floors of the Waterfront Center Building at 113 Harbor Way. The 
second floor space operates under the name Endless Summer Bar-Café. The base rent 
is $206,360 per year (average of $17,197 per month), or 10% of gross sales, whichever 
is greater. The tenant also reimburses the City for its proportional share of Common 
Area Maintenance (CAM) expenses for the Waterfront Center Building, currently $4,466 
per month. Chuck’s has a 30-year term on the lease. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For several years, Chuck’s owners Larry Stone and Steve Hyslop have expressed 
interest in changing the color of the exterior of the Waterfront Center Building to 
something they believe would be more inviting than the current white color. Additionally, 
the ground floor patio is exposed to wind and the elements and does not have glass 
wind screening common to other ocean-front restaurants such as Breakwater 
Restaurant, Shoreline Beach Café, the Boathouse at Arroyo Burro Beach, and 
Beachside Bar-Café at Goleta Beach. 
 
The Waterfront Center Building is designated as a historical landmark and any changes 
to the exterior of the building are subject to review and approval of the City’s Historic 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease With Chuck’s Waterfront Grill 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

Landmarks Committee (HLC). Since 2007, Chuck’s has been engaged in the HLC 
review process to restore the exterior building to its original ochre color, add a glass 
windscreen around the ground floor patio, add heating to the patio, and construct a 
canvas sail-like awning over the patio area (Attachment 1). Chuck’s architect, David 
Van Hoy, presented the tenant improvement plan to the Harbor Commission on 
November 16, 2006. Chuck’s now has approved plans and permits and is ready to 
proceed with the patio improvement. The cost of the project is estimated to be 
approximately $300,000. The Waterfront Department has budgeted an additional 
$75,000 for painting the building and trim, which will be reimbursed from the CAM 
charges paid by the Maritime Museum and Chuck’s. 
 
Chuck’s owners believe they can increase lunch and dinner service on the ground floor 
patio significantly with the proposed improvements. Certified Public Accountant Michael 
Schmitchen submitted a proforma indicating that Chuck’s sales are expected to 
increase by 18% in the year following the completion of the improvements and 3% per 
year thereafter. The increase in sales would result in a corresponding increase in 
percentage rent payments to the Department of approximately $50,000 annually.  
 
Reimbursement for Tenant Improvements 
 
In December 1997, the Harbor Commission reviewed and approved what is referred to 
as a “Reimbursement for Improvements” lease provision (Attachment 2). The 
Reimbursement for Improvements provision allows eligible tenants to apply for an offset 
to their percentage rent for certain infrastructure improvements that are approved in 
advance by the Department (the tenant is still responsible for paying its full base rent 
obligation). Tenants that have the Reimbursement for Improvements clause in their 
leases include Brophy Brothers, Char West, Harbor Restaurant, Minnow Café, 
Shoreline Beach Café, SB Shellfish Company, Sea Landing and SB Sailing Center. The 
clause is intended to encourage tenants to re-invest in their leased property in a manner 
that benefits the tenant and the City (the property ultimately reverts to City ownership at 
lease expiration). For example, Brophy Brothers and the Harbor Restaurant completed 
major kitchen and plumbing upgrades to their leased properties under the rent credit 
incentive program. Shoreline Beach Café added its awning and forced-air heating to its 
outdoor patio and received rent credits under the program; the tenant’s sales and 
percentage rent payments increased following the improvement. 
 
Chuck’s intends to use the Reimbursement for Improvements incentive program to 
make the patio improvements to the Waterfront Center building; however, the current 
formula (10% of annual rent paid) amounts to a total possible rent credit of $27,000-
$30,000 annually. Due to the high cost of the patio improvements, estimated at 
$300,000, Chuck’s requested a one-time increase to the Reimbursement for 
Improvements clause to $150,000 for the patio project.  The tenant will continue to 
make base rent payments (currently $206,000/year) and the $150,000 rent credit will be 
offset against Chuck’s monthly percentage rent obligation until the $150,000 is 
absorbed (approximately 1½ to 2 years). After calendar year 2011, the Reimbursement 
for Improvements clause will revert to the regular formula of 10% of actual rent paid. 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease With Chuck’s Waterfront Grill 
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

A similar temporarily enhanced Reimbursement for Improvements provision was 
negotiated with the Harbor Restaurant when it expanded its patio and patio enclosure in 
2002. 
 
The basic business terms of the lease remain unchanged. The Harbor Commission 
recommended approval of the lease at the February 18, 2010, meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Site Plan 
  2.  Harbor Commission Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY John N. Bridley, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 







1 

ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING A LEASE WITH 
RICHONES, INC., DOING BUSINESS AS CHUCK’S 
WATERFRONT GRILL, LOCATED AT 113 HARBOR WAY , 
EFFECTIVE APRIL 22, 2010. 
 
 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Lease With Richones, Inc., Doing Business As Chuck’s Waterfront Grill, Effective April 
22, 2010, is hereby approved. 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  640.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution To Record A Notice Terminating An Agreement Dated 

February 7, 1952, And Rescinding Title Covenants At 721-791 
Chapala Street 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara to Record a Notice Terminating an Agreement Dated February 7, 1952, 
and Rescinding Title Covenants at 721-791 Chapala Street. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The subject Agreement was created February 7, 1952, between the City and Henry 
Hazard, for the property then known as 111 W. De La Guerra Street and recorded in 
official County records at that time.  
 
The Agreement provided for the removal of an existing driveway in order to construct a 
new driveway 22 feet in width at the front of the property.  The Agreement also gave the 
City the right to have the driveway removed and the street curb restored to the original 
condition should it become necessary in the future. 
 
The Agreement contained title covenants reflecting these provisions.  The covenants 
were recorded against the property so as to “bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.”  On 
February 13, 1952, the Agreement was recorded in Book 1049 at Page 24 of Official 
Records. 
 
In 2004, the originally affected real property and other adjacent properties were merged 
and redeveloped by BDC Paseo Chapala LLC.  The redevelopment included new 
street, curb, gutter, and sidewalk improvements along the portion of West De La Guerra 
Street affected by the Agreement.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To Record A Notice Terminating An Agreement Dated February 7, 1952, And 
Rescinding Title Covenants At 721-791 Chapala Street 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 

 

The existing title covenants have not been terminated and should have been in 2004, as 
part of the redevelopment and re-subdivision of the real property.  An application has 
been submitted by BDC Paseo Chapala LLC to terminate the Agreement.  The title 
covenants have been superseded by the redevelopment of the property, along with the 
new public street improvements, and it is no longer necessary. 
 
Authorization by Council will allow for the recordation of the Notice in the Official 
Records in the Office of the County Recorder, thereby demonstrating the termination of 
the Agreement, and respective title covenants.  This will remove the covenants from the 
property title and the public records as intended. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Copy of Agreement of Title Covenants dated February 7, 1952 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/DT/sk  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Ttt ptiOn or 1[ck ISI4 i th oLty

©r S)t. S ,O or,, Cornty t 5,,ti B&t
of Coils to. .ob€d

polat on tho •$)othfllt.
.1, :,,, or 00 lo Str..t, dt0!,t
thoeoo. SO J•eot oth.ooto1,•t;o:o too, loter

or .da it[] .itoo tooo .o,]th0.,t,ry
how of :hepoi Streot, os the soot oo
thio6 S th.sstOrIy 010w ooid 1is ot Do 1,

Street O fset ThODIS ot oight ,OI_€O

ooutheo tsouy 225 re t to o pol,,t i dfly
bstos.n Ii’s sold lbs. or Es 10 Goso S.st
sod th St .t.1y 1lo or Ortg& str.stI
tl,.ooe ot flght •ss nthssst0r17 f•ot:.
tho, •t right sogl,s nNti’.,st&ay 0 LOOt;

thos.., ot i€ht s!sgl’! 1,rtho..t&niy foot;
th’nCO t tight •OSI so oothes t,r:y 0; rs.t
t too. P010t oSt0ioto&.

No1O49a 24

Till S AGNESYENT, sa a, sod fl orod bflt•O by Slid

bttosen too OX T7 0? SAXTA BARBAEA Ow t01p si 0oo fl—

tlr. dooly ©ogiobosd ood 5%Loti.,g ]ndsr sod by ‘LrtU Or

tho L or ti, its to Or C, Ltrnoi. hers inort.r r.r.,r,

to OS flRST PARTY. Sn oor hi. lJAZAo, or State

C.ltft,,oi., h.?ointfttr r,r!r,a •tO & SECOND FAIn,

WIT JO ESSETH

io 0 sod Forty is the 00.01ST of Shot coot, to

tool property .Ltai& to th City of !501t. Nobo&, Co00t7

prib, a as rhis,oo , to it

of loots Sorbars, Stot, of ralIreTni,, psrtL 1rIY as,—

1

Attachment

Page 1 of 5



W& !AS • S. ,ty h. £.q!. d p n I..t

irst P.rt to 1o,o th, eistt *tflts Lid I tfl

t:thv—t_ (221 tSt IIS •t

UI Vt O G.rr. .3rI.t Lid

vrn]rAs. Ft7 •‘ t.t

t td y Ftt ?.fl, t VIfly t .Ld•!,t M

tIfl I! it’i_ r€,

r:—•, n ;rttt7. F.;it, IiI.

::,.,, , ttr.

±. t—.,:. sr.!r

t2 .-o1rr.-.t—

t ± 7

— :& ::sr v:,;T 4L -

£Y. PatI ar,.

.x . :-.1.tt

;,.t;,,,

s,,; &• ftI;:t: ,: I.

I:: I ;-rr.

if •- ,x.

r ?Ifl

2. 7.,;.

t? tr;[ tb h,,, r7.’,t. t@ H by

Ott o1t,ts

th1,b!,y. t t.% 1tti thb .,,d •t.,,t •!:

C thn popo S St forth d

Pbtt7 h,fl, ft,tb. Irb tF),t. In u.o

—2

Page 2 of 5



jfl4 Pft

ve,it ths t eal a rprty b in the ture .4b.,,nasd

ite int,n,a .... thehs.o,ho Party *i]reet,,.

*eid.rb .t .itsp.w ,taontht.in,,, it,..w. Nm

to 7 Pi!t P.jtU mid

•S.oo.,d .rty hereby ttber ee! that. lthe

e.e’it it f,il. to w eetore a.id within thi].t, 9O

day, after recelvin ,itteo oti rra F:ret Pa en

dn, theo Fit P.rt, a,y sst*rs thS .ae a,

tirn d hill .ho’in, the ,aeta end &pente, of e.id reetDra—

tie!] Seo!,a Pm•ty “ill .p&y ..id e.t. aod !P!! nt

,u,, .etor,ti,i .,,a in th! e.eot of StooM Pirtyt,

1te !O tn fly. Fi!t Part, ,tey rotitet the ooote a, eç—

peot e a’ d &e to .& tion .nrk . by 1.a1. a tion, to ‘ifl*

• r!&ona1e !ttorfltyt rat .aod qoort IQ!ie.

3. YOT1CE. Any and .11 .ttt!, to bt gi!o b,

F.irot Party to ,aohd P.iy :ahail b i’ei by eehdil€ the

ant by regis er ad jail. addSs,ed td Sen o.oa Party at follow!

REPX 4. HZiO. U riot o. Ia 0 e:fl Street, S an

Geliforrit

eM all. ontin! Mtoh t&y be !i’,eo by

Stoood ?Szty to Ptst Party ehefl tt •SIeo by ,eoal the

ea by r epi.ttre call adtttttd to tyclerk, City Nall

dart! Detbata. £t1trroit

J SEJCCESSO Rd • Th it Agree mart is Lot ended to

add tee bir.d cod !hall iore. in the ben.fit of the Pe,i..

hereto. theIr reepetims heirs, e.outor,, .ini,t.atnr..

end !!tigt.
.11

I wimsS rIFTRG •th ..to ib

.

—.1 .

4

Page 3 of 5



.thl é Ccnt, t

______

, •ot Rèb.& c’.
t I •7 •flfltd In 4p1itt thl&

a sari SafljjA.
•

SD AS I’

EX.fl PAer

tNT iP £ I

,Z4tW AA

APPO ItSO

p

t.soltg cIhot.

t .t r•,-y,.

It h !bl prOp. d th t

I

3

/
TI

.o igrrt, t,

______

1952.

1

To-, ...\I
I-, £b ,, t

Page 4 of 5



—

H:

pEtaflo Wt.

——d

3*tZ W ;flIFC€7&

r SL1 SjflMA
•1

t> t 52, •,

_flL.,5 ifff4 • ,t±t ft

ntd c.,!t, od Stat.. 9!oalL IeIR1 M H*ZAR.

to •th M.©, !ot

th ttl[,O thtt •1 ‘.kno.i&d tp . tb&t •

IYiTNE5 WMflW, .1 •h,v, runt •t .y h!!od

•M •ttl !7 trtefll th des 1 th

:.tir2;.— r:,—.t &..,. ,rjte,4.

?,bt1 i. • .

.fltT f 3.!.t. stat. r.:

D.,; J.cs G. q... .Ia

Page 5 of 5



1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA TO RECORD A NOTICE 
TERMINATING AN AGREEMENT DATED 
FEBRUARY 7, 1952, AND RESCINDING TITLE 
COVENANTS AT 721-791 CHAPALA STREET 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, on February 7, 1952, the City and Henry M. Hazard (Hazard) 
entered into an Agreement (Agreement), a copy of which was recorded on 
February 13, 1952, as Instrument No. 2081, in Book 1049 at Page 24 of Official 
Records, as shown on Exhibit A attached here; 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement provided for, among other things, the removal of a 
driveway to make way for construction by Hazard of a new driveway twenty-two 
feet (22’) wide fronting the property then known as 111 De La Guerra Street (the 
Property); 
 
WHEREAS, the Property originally affected by the Agreement and other adjacent 
properties have been merged and redeveloped by BDC Paseo Chapala, which 
included the removal and construction by BDC Paseo Chapala of entirely new 
public street, curb, gutter and sidewalk improvements that now front the portions 
of De La Guerra Street affected by the Agreement as described in Lot 1 of Final 
Map No. 20,686, being a subdivision of a portion of the City of Santa Barbara 
Block 194, recorded on December 1, 2004, in Book 200, Pages 46 to 48 of 
Maps, Records of Santa Barbara County, California; 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement also provided for title covenants that shall “bind and 
shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assign;” 
 
WHEREAS, an application has been initiated by BDC Paseo Chapala to 
terminate the Agreement because it is no longer necessary due to the 
construction of new public improvements for De La Guerra Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to record this Notice in order to effectively terminate 
the Agreement recorded on February 13, 1952, as Instrument No. 2081, in 
Book 1049 at Page 24 of Official Records. 
 
 



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Agreement recorded on February 13, 1952, as Instrument 
No. 2081, in Book 1049 at Page 24 of Official Records is no longer necessary. 
 
SECTION 2.  All right, title and interest which City had pursuant to the Agreement 
in and to the Property described therein (Title Covenants) have terminated. 
 
SECTION 3.  City desires to record this Notice in the Official Records, in the 
Office of the County Recorder, Santa Barbara County, California, in order to 
demonstrate the termination of the Agreement recorded on February 13, 1952, 
as Instrument No. 2081, in Book 1049 at Page 24 of Official Records. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  330.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Division, Waterfront Department  
 
SUBJECT: Five-Year Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Chamber Of 

Commerce 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 

That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with the Santa Barbara Chamber of 
Commerce for the 400 square-foot Visitor Center site at One Garden Street. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
The Chamber of Commerce Visitor Center (Visitor Center) has leased its site from the 
Waterfront Department since January 1988. The current lease will expire on January 31, 
2010. 
 
The lease specifies that the use of the site is primarily for a non-profit visitor information 
center, but also permits the sale of incidental items such as educational books, literature, 
periodicals, directories and logo shirts.  
 
The Visitor Center also sells advertising space on the bulletin board behind the front 
counter and tickets for various visitor-related businesses such as the Santa Barbara 
Sailing Center and the Santa Barbara Trolley Company.  
 
There is no base rent for the site. In lieu of monetary rent, the Visitor Center is required to 
be open to the public for a minimum of 11 a.m. to 2 p.m. daily, 360 days a year. The lease 
does, however, have a percentage rent requirement. The Visitor Center is required to pay 
10% of gross sales in excess of $70,000 in a year. 
 
The Chamber is responsible for all maintenance, repair and staffing of the site, and the 
Waterfront Department has no maintenance responsibility and incurs no costs from the 
Visitor Center operation. 
 
The basic terms of the proposed lease are as follows: 
 

• Term:  Five years 
• Base rent:  None (no change) 
• Percentage rent: 10% of retail sales in excess of $70,000 in a year 
• Exclusions from gross sales: Sales of third party tickets such as the trolley 

tickets, and revenue from the advertising board. 



Council Agenda Report 
Five-Year Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Chamber Of Commerce 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

The Visitor Center lease is intended to enable the Chamber to operate the Visitor Center 
as a public service, and has never been intended to be a revenue generator for the City. 
The Visitor Center is open from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. in the summer and 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. in the 
winter. Visitor Center staff estimate that they served approximately 182,000 visitors in 
2009. 
 
The Harbor Commission recommended approval of the lease agreement at the 
January 21, 2010, meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Site Plan 
 
PREPARED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: John N. Bridley, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 





Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Report - Access Advisory Committee 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive an annual report from the Americans with Disabilities Act 
Coordinator on the activities and achievements of the Access Advisory Committee. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Resolution No. 08-095, establishing the Access Advisory Committee, calls for the City’s 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Coordinator to report annually to Council 
regarding the activities and achievements of the Committee. 
 
Background 
 
In September 2008, Council established the Access Advisory Committee (the 
Committee) as a successor to previous access advisory bodies.  The group was 
restructured to reach beyond just building-related issues in order to take advantage of 
opportunities revealed during the City’s recently completed voluntary update to its ADA 
Transition Plan and Self-Evaluation.   
 
The Committee is designed to consist of two members from the Disability Community, 
two members of the architectural, engineering or building communities, and three 
members from the community at large, with at least 51% of its members being people 
with disabilities.  The initial membership of the committee included three members of 
the former “Access Advisory Committee to Staff”, Karen Johnson, Adelaida Ortega, and 
Victor Suhr, all of whom had many years of experience working with the City on 
disabilities issues.  It also included new members Brian Barnwell, Jeanette Chian, 
James Marston, and Amy Van Meter.  During the summer of 2009, Mr. Marsten 
resigned due to an out-of-state move, and Council replaced him with Ken McLellan in 
December 2009. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Report - Access Advisory Committee 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 

 

During the past year, Ms. Johnson has served as the Chair of the Committee.  Staff and 
Committee members are very grateful to her for her leadership. 
Activities in 2009 
 
The newly formed Committee had its first “kick off” meeting in February 2009, and held 
six meetings during the year: four regular quarterly meetings, and two special meetings.  
With the serious budget problems in the General Fund, there was limited ability to work 
on the list of non-mandatory access improvement projects to City facilities that were 
identified in the ADA Transition Plan.  Nevertheless, as discussed below, the Committee 
found more than enough meaningful work to complete.   
 
- Reviewing and Refining Committee Roles & Responsibilities   
 
As this was the first year of this Committee in its current form, staff and the Committee 
spent some time reviewing and refining the role and responsibilities of the Committee, 
and establishing a framework for the future.  Initial activities included, for example, 
receiving an overview of Brown Act requirements.   
 
Later in the year, the Committee formed an ad hoc subcommittee on Education.  The 
purpose of this subcommittee will be to develop a plan to help the ADA Coordinator 
educate employees and the public about the work of the Committee, and about access 
issues facing people with disabilities in our community in general.   
 
The Committee recently appointed a liaison to the Transportation and Circulation 
Committee to stay abreast of new developments with access with implications in the 
City’s rights-of-way and report back to the Committee.  The Committee also appointed a 
liaison to Facilities division staff to keep track of day-to-day access improvements being 
made by maintenance staff that might otherwise escape the notice of the Committee. 
 
- Planning for Access Improvements to City Facilities  
 
Staff and the Committee also reviewed a plan to ensure Committee’s meaningful 
participation in capital planning related to non-mandatory access improvements to City 
facilities.  A list of facilities improvement projects that are not mandatory, but would 
significantly enhance existing access levels for people with disabilities, was developed 
as part of the City’s ADA Transition Plan update, and it is a long-term goal to complete 
as many of these projects as possible. Though capital funding was seriously reduced for 
Fiscal Year 2010, and probably will be for Fiscal Year 2011, staff felt it was important to 
set up this structure for long-term planning purposes, and for when funding for these 
access improvements does become available.   
 
From a long-term planning standpoint, every two years City Engineering staff will meet 
with the Committee for help in prioritizing projects identified in the City’s ADA Transition 
Plan for inclusion in the City’s 6-Year Capital Improvement Plan.  This process is next 
scheduled to occur in November 2010.  Then, every spring, the Committee will be given 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Report - Access Advisory Committee 
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 

 

the opportunity to comment on the recommendations for projects from the Capital 
Improvement Plan selected to be incorporated the proposed General Fund financial 
plan and/or operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year, given the available funding 
designated for access improvements.   
 
- Access Improvements to the Public Rights-of-Way 
 
One of the biggest opportunities for the City to improve access for people with 
disabilities exists in the public rights-of-way.  Access issues in the rights-of-way include 
curb cuts, sidewalk infill, audible pedestrian signals (APS), and vegetation 
management, among others. These types of improvements significantly improve the 
ability for people with mobility and vision impairments, as well as other disabilities, to 
move comfortably and independently around the City.   
 
As one of its projects this year, the Committee helped Engineering staff to evaluate and 
select a new standard design for two-way directional access ramps with curbed divider 
islands, one-way directional access ramps (for T-intersections), and diagonal ramps 
(delta ramps) in order to ensure easy access and minimize confusion and obstacles for 
people with various, and sometime competing, needs.   
 
Fortunately, funding for projects in the rights-of-way is currently very healthy.  In 
addition to regular funding through the City’s Streets Program ($250,000 in FY 09, 
$400,000 in FY 10, and FY 11 funding yet to be determined), the City has received or 
will receive additional funding for curb cuts and sidewalk improvements from the 
following sources: 2010 CDBG Project ($90,000), 2011 CDBG Project ($50,000), the 
CDBG Recovery Act ($156, 883), and the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
($800,000).   
 
The impact of this funding is significant.  For many years, the City has maintained a list 
of “priority corridors” for sidewalk access ramps in the rights-of-way, which was 
developed with input from previous iterations of the Committee.  These corridors 
included large parts of the following streets:  Modoc, Gutierrez, Coast Village Road, 
Milpas, and De La Vina.  Micheltorena and Alisos Streets were later added to this list.  
Over the years, steady progress has been made toward removing curb and sidewalk 
obstacles in these corridors.  Because of the influx of funding last year, staff was able to 
schedule almost total completion of these priority corridors over the next year, a huge 
accomplishment for access.  Many other improvements were funded as well.  
 
The Committee worked closely with Engineering staff on plans for these projects all 
year.  One of the major tasks for the Committee in the coming year will be to help 
develop new priority corridors and/or priority areas for the next wave of access 
improvements in the public rights-of-way. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Report - Access Advisory Committee 
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 

 

- Connections with Department Liaisons 
 
Each City department has an ADA Liaison who is tasked with ensuring full access for 
people with disabilities to the department’s programs, activities, and services, and 
resolving requests and complaints at the department level.  This year, the Committee 
heard presentations from, the liaisons from the following Departments about program 
access efforts in those departments: 
 

• Parks and Recreation: Sarah Hanna, Recreation Programs Manager 
• Waterfront: Karl Treiberg, Waterfront Facilities Manager 
• Police: David Whitham, Police Lieutenant 

 
These meetings have been very well received on all sides.  For one thing, these 
presentations allow the Committee to appreciate just how much the City already does to 
ensure access to its programs and services.  Committee members also get the 
opportunity to speak to these liaisons directly about the types of challenges people with 
disabilities encounter with the services their departments provide.  Interestingly, one of 
the chief benefits of these types of presentation has been keeping our liaisons engaged 
in access awareness.  In each case, the liaisons came away with reinvigorated focus 
and energy toward access goals. 
 
- Special Outreach  
 
The Committee invited several people to attend Committee meetings to find out what 
other organizations were doing to ensure access, and they graciously complied: 

• Joe Ayala, the Projects/Programs Administrator from the Santa Barbara Sheriff’s 
Dispatch visited to give the Committee and overview of the Reverse 9-1-1 
system; 

• Steve Maas, the Manager of Strategic Planning & Compliance for the Santa 
Barbara Metropolitan Transit District (MTD) gave an overview of MTD’s public 
transit access efforts; and 

• Yolanda McGlinchey, City Emergency Services Manager, gave an overview of 
disaster response accommodations for people with disabilities both at the City 
and County level, and introduced members to the County’s “Emergency Disaster 
Plan for Vulnerable Populations”. 
(http://www.sbcphd.org/documents/ems/disaster_plan_for_vulnerable_populations.pdf) 

 
In all of these cases, Committee members had the opportunity to ask questions and 
provide their perspectives to these key staff members. 
 
Facilities Improvement Updates 
 
Access improvements are constantly being completed in City facilities through various 
new construction projects and facility modification projects, as required by the ADA and 
Title 24 of the Building Code, and through opportunities identified during routine 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Report - Access Advisory Committee 
March 16, 2010 
Page 5 

 

maintenance.  These projects are separate and distinct from those non-mandatory 
Capital Improvement Program projects that are completed specifically to address the 
access improvement opportunities identified under the ADA Transition Plan. 
 
Staff tries to keep the Committee updated about as many of these access 
improvements as possible.   Examples of current or recent projects where access 
improvements are being achieved include upgrades to City facilities at the Airport, 
Carrillo Recreation Center, Downtown Parking lots, the Cater Treatment Plant, and at 
the Marina.    
 
Challenges for 2010 
 
Staff and the Committee are pleased with what we have been able to accomplish during 
2009.  
 
Due to the ongoing budget crisis, we expect that funding for non-mandatory access 
improvements will be limited in Fiscal Year 2011, as it was in 2010, and there will 
continue to be significant pressures on available staff time due to staffing reductions.  
Nevertheless, we are confident that there will be plenty of important work for the 
Committee to accomplish, such as developing an education plan, prioritizing new 
access corridors, and possibly identifying outside funding sources for access 
improvements.   
 
Mr. Barnwell will serve as Chair next year, and staff will return to Council to provide 
another annual update at the expiration of his one-year term. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager (ADA Coordinator) 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo Lopez, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  570.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Recreation Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Introduction Of Ordinance Establishing Procedures For Appointment 

And Service Of Youth Member To Parks And Recreation 
Commission 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 2.08.020 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code and Establishing Procedures for the Appointment and Service of a Youth 
Member to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Over the years, teens have played an important role as advocates of teen programming, 
community leadership, and service in our community. They were instrumental in 
advocating for and garnering public support to create Skaters Point Skateboard Park and 
Twelve35 Teen Center. Through the Santa Barbara Youth Council, teens have played an 
important advisory role to the City Council and the Parks and Recreation Commission. In 
1995, by Council resolution, the City Youth Intern Program was created so that applicants, 
interviewed and approved by the Mayor, could be appointed to serve on various City 
Charter Boards and Commissions. Since 1995, a Youth Intern has been appointed to 
serve on the Parks and Recreation Commission as a non-voting member.   
 
In May 2008, the Council Committee on Youth and Children (the “Council Committee”) 
discussed how the youth leadership experience through the Youth Intern Program might 
be enhanced by, among other things, elevating the youth voice on the Parks and 
Recreation Commission to a more formal level that would include voting. The Council 
Committee established a sub-committee (the “Subcommittee”) with representatives from 
the Council Committee, the Parks and Recreation Commission, the Youth Council, and 
staff, to review the intern program and develop options. The Subcommittee made a 
number of recommendations to enhance the youth intern program overall.  In order to give 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance Establishing Procedures For Appointment And Service Of 
Youth Member To Parks And Recreation Commission 
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 
 

 

youth a formal vote on the Parks and Recreation Commission, rather than a mock vote, a 
Charter amendment would be needed, so that recommendation was tabled until such time 
as Charter amendments were being considered. On June 23, 2009 the City Council 
moved forward with including a number of charter amendments on the ballot, including an 
amendment that would provide the City Council the option to officially appoint a youth as a 
voting member of the Parks and Recreation Commission (Measure C).  
 
Charter Amendment Approved by Voters 
 
On November 3, 2009, voters of the City of Santa Barbara overwhelmingly approved 
Measure C. The ballot measure amends language in the City Charter in order to form a 
new combined City “Parks and Recreation Commission” with seven members.  The 
powers and duties of the new Commission will be the same as that of the former 
separate Park and Recreation commissions, except that the amendment grants the new 
Commission authority to advise the City Council on matters concerning creeks within 
the City, since the Department has oversight and responsibility for the Creek 
Restoration and Clean Water Program. 
 
The measure also authorizes, but does not require, the City Council to appoint a youth 
member, 16 years of age or older, who resides within the City, to serve on the Parks 
and Recreation Commission. The manner of appointing the youth member and the term 
of office for the youth member are to be established by an Ordinance of the City 
Council.  
 
A new Subcommittee of two Parks and Recreation Commissioners and two Youth 
Council members (the “Appointment Subcommittee”) was formed at the November 18, 
2009, Parks and Recreation Commission meeting to develop recommendations for City 
Council on both the appointment and term of the youth member.   
 
Subcommittee Recommendations 
 
On January 11, 2010, the Appointment Subcommittee met to review the current 
guidelines for all City advisory committees including recruitment, eligibility, appointment 
process, and term. The “Guidelines for the City of Santa Barbara Advisory Groups” and 
a draft ordinance provided by the City Attorney were shared with the Subcommittee.  
The Subcommittee determined that the manner of appointment and service of a youth 
member should follow the process of appointment and service of other members of the 
Parks and Recreation Commission.   For example, applicants must follow instructions to 
submit an application through the City Clerk’s Office and appear for an interview before 
Council.   
 
The Appointment Subcommittee identified additional issues related to appointing a 
youth member that were addressed as follows:  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance Establishing Procedures For Appointment And Service Of 
Youth Member To Parks And Recreation Commission 
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 

• Should the member serve a four-year term or something shorter? If a four-year term 
was decided upon, would youth be dissuaded from applying, knowing they may not 
be able to fulfill the full term? – There was significant discussion on this issue. The 
Subcommittee eventually supported the full four-year term for several reasons: a 
youth resignation would be no different than an adult resignation, there is a process 
in place to fill vacancies, and a shorter term might be equated with a less important 
role for the youth member. Ideas were also discussed on ways to encourage 
applicants including outreach and recruitment through the Youth Council and other 
community leadership programs. The Guidelines for City Advisory Groups, including 
service and term, could be shared with interested applicants. The Parks and 
Recreation Director also explained that she meets with each applicant to explain the 
role of commissioners and to understand their personal interests in the position. 
These talks provide a good opportunity to answer questions that a youth applicant 
may have, including ability to fulfill a four-year term.  
 

• What criteria would be used to select a youth member if there were several youth 
applicants? - Commissioners are interviewed and appointed by City Council, and 
though decisions may be difficult, it is the Council’s responsibility to select the best 
candidate. The Council utilizes a list of questions (which are also supplied to the 
applicant) for the interview process. The Subcommittee recommends that an 
interview question on youth issues be added to the suggested questions that Council 
may use when interviewing all potential Parks and Recreation Commissioner 
applicants to assist Council in their decision-making.  

 
• Does the term “youth member” imply a designated commission member category 

similar to other boards and commissions which have designated representation such 
as an architect or background in environmental land use planning? - The 
Subcommittee discussed whether the “youth member” should be a dedicated “youth” 
representation, meaning that this appointee would specifically represent the youth 
voice or perspective. The Subcommittee did not interpret previous discussions at the 
Commission or City Council as direction to create a designated “youth” member 
position on the Commission. Rather, the intent was to allow a youth the opportunity 
to serve as a full voting member of the Commission, understanding that the youth 
would bring a youth perspective to the discussions similar to how other 
commissioners bring their backgrounds and experience to the position.   

 
• Applicants to City boards and commissions are required to be “qualified electors” in 

the City of Santa Barbara. A “qualified elector” is a United States citizen, 18 years of 
age or older and living within the City limits of the City of Santa Barbara. What 
happens when the youth turns 18 years old? Are they then disqualified from service? 
Would the “youth” commissioner have to register to vote at age 18 to fulfill the 
“qualified elector” requirement?  The City Attorney added provisions to the draft 
ordinance that succinctly reflect what happens when a youth reaches 18 years of 
age, saying that “reaching the age of eighteen (18) should not disqualify a youth 
applicant who is appointed to the Parks and Recreation Commission from continuing 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance Establishing Procedures For Appointment And Service Of 
Youth Member To Parks And Recreation Commission 
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 
 

 

to serve the balance of his or her term of office.” Reasons for disqualification would 
not deviate from the current guidelines for advisory group members. The youth 
applicant would be required to live within the City of Santa Barbara.  

 
Youth Council Recommendation 
 
At the January 19, 2010, meeting of the Youth Council, the draft ordinance was 
approved with a recommendation to forward it to the Parks and Recreation Commission 
and City Council. 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission Recommendation 
 
At the January 27, 2010, meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission, the draft 
ordinance was approved with a recommendation to forward it to the Ordinance 
Committee and City Council. 
 
Ordinance Committee Recommendation 
 
At the February 23, 2010, meeting, the Ordinance Committee heard a staff presentation 
on the proposed appointment and service of a youth member. The Committee voted to 
forward the proposed ordinance amendment to City Council for introduction and 
adoption.   
 
During the discussion, the question was raised whether a Youth Intern would continue 
to be appointed to the Parks and Recreation Commission if a youth member was 
appointed as a commissioner. Staff indicated that the Parks and Recreation 
Commission discussed this and affirmed their interest in continuing to have a Youth 
Intern appointed to serve with the Commission. The Committee was also divided on the 
length of term, 2 years or 4 years, but did not recommend a change to the draft 
ordinance.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Sarah Hanna, Recreation Programs Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



1 

COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 3/16/10 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SECTION 2.08.020 OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE AND 
ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE APPOINTMENT 
AND SERVICE OF A YOUTH MEMBER TO THE PARKS 
AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

 
  
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION ONE.  Section 2.08.020 of Chapter 2.08 of Title 2 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
2.08.020 Enumeration and Index. 
 
  A.  BOARD OF AIRPORT COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members 
and their function is delineated in Chapter 18.44 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
and Section 812 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
  B.  ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW:  The appointment of members 
and their function is delineated in Chapter 22.68 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
and Section 814 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
  C.  BOARD OF CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of 
members and their function is delineated in Section 808 of Article VIII of the City 
Charter. 
 
  D.  BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members 
and their function is delineated in Section 811 of Article VIII of the City Charter and 
Chapter 17.06 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 
 
  E.  LIBRARY BOARD:  The appointment of members and their function is 
delineated in Section 807 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
  F.  BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERSPARKS AND RECREATION 
COMMISSION:  The appointment of members and their function is delineated in Section 
809 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
  G.  BOARD OF FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSIONERS:  The 
appointment of members and their function is delineated in Section 815 of Article VIII of 
the City Charter. 
 



2 

  H.  PLANNING COMMISSION:  The appointment of members and their 
function is delineated in Section 806 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
  I.  BOARD OF FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSIONERS: The appointment of 
members and their function is delineated in Section 816 of Article VIII of the City 
Charter. 
 
  J. RECREATION COMMISSION:  The appointment of members and their 
function is delineated in Section 810 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
 K. BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS:  The appointment of members and 
their function is delineated in Section 813 of Article VIII of the City Charter. 
 
SECTION TWO.  Section 809 of the City Charter allows for the appointment of a person 
under the age of eighteen (18) to the Parks and Recreation Commission (a “youth 
member.”)  This ordinance supplements the provisions of Article VIII of the City Charter 
as it concerns the nomination, appointment, and service of any person who is appointed 
as a youth member to serve on the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
  A.  PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION - APPOINTMENT AND 
SERVICE.  Members of the Parks and Recreation Commission are appointed and serve 
terms in office as provided in Article VIII of the City Charter.  In general, members of the 
Parks and Recreation Commission are appointed and serve their terms of office in 
accordance with Section 802 of the City Charter.  Notwithstanding the eligibility 
requirements specified in Section 802 of the City Charter, Section 809 of the City 
Charter, as amended by the voters of the City in November 2009, allows one (1) 
member of the Parks and Recreation Commission to be an individual of age sixteen 
(16) years or older.  The City Council may, but is not required to, appoint a youth 
member to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
  B.  PERSONS UNDER THE AGE OF EIGHTEEN (18) - APPOINTMENT 
AND SERVICE.  The City Council chooses to consider applicants for appointment as a 
youth member of the Parks and Recreation Commission in the following manner: 
    
   1. The application process for a youth applicant shall follow the 
process applicable to other applicants for membership on the Commission (as specified 
in Article VIII of the City Charter and supplemented by resolution of the City Council), 
except as otherwise provided in this ordinance. 
 
    2. A youth applicant need not be eighteen (18) years of age at the 
time of appointment or during his or her term in office. 
 
    3.   A youth applicant shall be a resident of the City of Santa Barbara 
and a citizen of the United States at the time of appointment and during his or her term 
in office. 
 



3 

    4. Reaching the age of eighteen (18) shall not disqualify a person 
appointed as a youth member on the Commission from continuing to serve the balance 
of his or her term in office. 
 
    5. If a vacancy is created by the resignation, disqualification, or 
removal of a youth member on the Commission, the City Council may, but is not 
required to, appoint a youth applicant to the vacant position on the Commission. 
   
    6. If a youth member on the Commission reaches the age of eighteen 
(18) during his or her term in office, the City Council may, but is not required to, appoint 
a youth applicant to another vacant position on the Commission. 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  March 16, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment 

Act Road Maintenance Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Reject the bid protest filed by Valley Slurry Seal and award a contract to Bond 

Blacktop, Inc. (Bond), in the amount of $1,150,148 for construction of the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (Recovery Act) Road Maintenance 
Project (Project), Bid No. 3586; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $88,100 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;   

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Flowers and Associates (Flowers), in the amount of $114,416 for 
construction support services, and approve expenditures of up to $11,440 for 
extra services of Flowers that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Fugro West, Inc. (Fugro), in the amount of $44,550 for construction 
testing services, and approve expenditures of up to $4,450 for extra services of 
Fugro that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Road Maintenance Construction Contract is funded by the Recovery Act.  Roadway 
maintenance was identified as one of the City’s “shovel ready” Streets projects. A 
second separate Recovery Act Road Overlay Project is proposed for Council’s 
approval. The total amount of Recovery Act funds authorized for the two projects is 
approximately $2.67 million.  The City has a proactive roadway preventative 
maintenance program and these Recovery Act funds have been identified to augment 
priority roadwork throughout the City.  This contract is aimed at preserving the surface 
of City roads by utilizing cape seal and slurry seal surface treatment. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road 
Maintenance Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The proposed work for the Project consists of various methods of pavement 
maintenance, such as slurry and cape sealing of the roadway.  The work includes 
addressing roads in mild to significant disrepair.  The Project will address both asphalt 
and concrete roads (see Attachment for the locations of the two proposed Recovery Act 
pavement construction contracts). 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of five bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BASE BID 
AMOUNT* 

BID 
ALT. 1 

BID 
ALT. 2 

BID 
ALT. 3 

CONTINGENCY 
BID 

      
1. Bond Blacktop 

Union City, CA $881,000 $421,064 $316,386 $241,098 $28,050

2. Valley Slurry Seal** 
Sacramento, CA $932,681 $447,017 $325,314 $249,678 $26,775

3. Windsor Fuel Company 
Windsor, CA $1,138,050 $332,200 $312,480 $257,400 $19,500

4. Pavement Coatings, Inc. 
Cypress, CA $1,392,250 $537,540 $558,000 $445,302 $28,500

5. Intermountain Slurry Seal  
Sacramento, CA $1,652,950 $675,710 $619,380 $476,190 $35,700

*Award of Contract based on amount of base bid. 
**Staff acknowledges that this contractor will be protesting the award recommendation at the Council 
meeting. 
 
The low Base Bid of $881,000, submitted by Bond, is an acceptable bid that is 
responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.  In addition to the 
Base Bid, there are sufficient funds available to include Bid Alternative 3 (see 
attachment) and the Contingency Bid into the contract amount.  The Contingency Bid 
includes any field street striping changes not included in the Base Bid. 
 
The total contract amount is $1,150,148, plus an additional $88,100 for change orders.  
The change order funding recommendation represents approximately 8% of the 
contract total and is within the typical range for this type of work and size of project.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road 
Maintenance Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 3 

 

 

BID PROTEST 
 
A “bid protest” was filed by the second low bidder, Valley Slurry Seal (VSS), contesting 
that a product they are proposing should be considered equal to the product specified in  
the Project specifications and, therefore, should be authorized for use in this Project.  
VSS also contends that the testing required of the product, as specified, should not be 
allowed.  After careful review, staff has concluded that there is sufficient information to 
support staff’s position that the VSS product is not equal to the product specified in the 
Project specifications.  Staff will give a presentation regarding its recommendation to 
reject the bid protest and the reasoning for recommending the award of the contract to 
Bond, the lowest responsive bidder.  It is expected that VSS will be making a similar 
presentation to Council regarding its bid protest.    
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers in the amount of $125,856 for construction support services.  On 
November 10, 2009, Council approved the selection of Flowers to provide professional 
engineering design and construction management services for pavement maintenance 
projects through the end of Fiscal Year 2012.   
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Fugro in the amount of $49,000 for testing services.  Fugro is experienced 
in this type of work. 
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 
The Public Works Department informs the public of ongoing projects.  Information on 
the Project was mailed out while in the design phase and after the bids were opened.  
During the design of the Project, staff worked closely with private and public utilities to 
ensure that their work would be completed prior to the road restoration work. 
 
FUNDING   
 
On October 20, 2009, Council accepted and appropriated funds for the work.  Eligible 
construction phase work under the Project is 100% reimbursable from the Recovery 
Act.  There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Streets Capital Fund to cover the 
cost of this Project, including the City’s share, as identified in the tables below. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road 
Maintenance Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 4 

 

 

The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

Construction Contract 
(Bond) 

$1,150,148 $88,100 $1,238,248

Construction Support Service 
(Flowers) 

$114,416 $11,440 $125,856

Material Testing 
(Fugro) 

$44,550 $4,450 $49,000

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $1,413,104
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Phase Federal 
Share 

City 
Share 

Total 
Cost 

Design (by Contract or City staff) $0 $42,283 $42,283
 Subtotal $0 $42,283 $42,283

Construction Contract  $1,150,148 $0 $1,150,148
Construction Change Order Allowance $88,100 $0

 
$88,100

Construction Support service (by Contract) $125,856 $0
 

$125,856
Other Construction Costs (testing, etc.) $49,000 $0 $49,000

 Subtotal $1,413,104 $0 $1,413,104
Construction Management/Inspection  
(by City Staff)

 

$0 $22,500 $22,500

 Subtotal $0 $22,500 $22,500

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,413,104 $64,783 $1,477,887
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of American Recovery And Reinvestment Act Road 
Maintenance Project  
March 16, 2010 
Page 5 

 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
This timely maintenance sustains our roads and minimizes or eliminates the need for 
road reconstruction.  This reduces the use of additional materials and pavement oils, 
both of which deplete natural resources. 
 
Additional materials regarding this project will be provided to City Councilmembers and 
are available to the public at the City Clerk’s office, located at 735 Anacapa Street, 
Santa Barbara, California, after 10:00 a.m. on Friday, March 12, 2010. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Recovery Act Road Overlay and Maintenance Projects Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/TC/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



ATTACHMENT


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.PDF
	5.PDF
	6.PDF
	7.PDF
	8.PDF
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.PDF
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.PDF
	20.DOC
	21.PDF
	22.PDF
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.PDF
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.PDF
	29.DOC
	30.DOC
	31.DOC
	32.DOC
	33.PDF
	CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
	Mayor
	Dale Francisco
	Michael Self
	MARCH 16, 2010
	AGENDA


	ORDER OF BUSINESS



